

Automatic Door and Revolving Door Maintenance and Repair

LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA, a political subdivision of the State of Florida, through its Board of County Commissioners (hereinafter "County") does hereby accept, with noted modifications, if any, the bid of **C&D Industrial Maintenance, LLC** (hereinafter "Contractor") to supply **Automatic Door and Revolving Door Maintenance and Repair Services** to the County pursuant to County Bid number 23-911 with any included addenda (hereinafter "Bid"), with an opening date of 2/14/2023, and Contractor's Bid response dated 1/16/2023, thereto with all County Bid provisions governing.

A copy of the Contractor's signed Bid is attached hereto and incorporated herein, thus making it a part of this Contract except that any items not awarded have been struck through. The attachments noted below are attached hereto and are part of this Contract.

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment 1 – Submittal Form with General Terms & Conditions acceptance signed by Contractor

Attachment 2 – Pricing Sheet

Exhibit A – Scope of Work

Exhibit B – Insurance Requirements

Exhibit C – <u>Lake County General Terms & Conditions version 5.6.21</u> (lakecountyfl.gov)

Exhibit D – Additional Terms and Conditions

No financial obligation under this Contract shall accrue against the County until a specific purchase transaction is completed pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Contract.

The County's Procurement Services Director shall be the sole judge as to the fact of the fulfillment of this Contract, and upon any breach thereof, shall, at his option, declare this Contract terminated, and for any loss or damage by reason of such breach, whether this Contract is terminated or not, said Contractor and their surety for any required bond shall be liable.

The Contract initial term is from 3/29/2023 through 3/28/2024 with the option for four subsequent one-year renewals. The County reserves the right to terminate this Contract immediately for cause and/or lack of funds and with thirty (30) day written notice for the convenience of the County. Renewals are contingent upon mutual written agreement.

Modifications to this Contract must be in writing signed by the County's Procurement Services Director.

LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA

Bill Ponko

By: Bill Ponko Senior Contracting Officer Date: 3/10/2023

The undersigned hereby declares that: C&D Industrial Maintenance LLC has examined and accepts the specifications, terms, and conditions presented in this Solicitation, satisfies all legal requirements to do business with the County, and to furnish **Automatic Door Opener and Revolving Door Maintenance and Repair** for which Submittals were advertised to be received no later than 3:00 P.M. Eastern time on the date stated in the solicitation or as noted in an addenda. Furthermore, the undersigned is duly authorized to execute this document and any contracts or other transactions required by award of this Solicitation.

1. TERM OF CONTRACT

The Contract will be awarded for an initial one (1) year term with the option for two (2) subsequent two (2) year renewals. Renewals are contingent upon mutual written agreement.

The Contract will commence upon the first day of the next calendar month after approval by the authorized authority. The Contract remains in effect until completion of the expressed and implied warranty periods. The County reserves the right to negotiate for additional services/items similar in nature not known at time of solicitation.

2. INVOICING

As stated in Exhibit D – Additional Terms and Conditions.

Vendor accepts MasterCard for payment: YES

3. CERTIFICATION REGARDING LAKE COUNTY TERMS AND CONDITIONS

I certify that I have reviewed the <u>General Terms and Conditions for Lake County Florida</u> and accept the Lake County General Terms and Conditions dated 5/6/21 as written including the Proprietary/Confidential Information section. YES

Failure to acknowledge may result in Submittal being deemed non-responsive.

4. CERTIFICATION REGARDING EXHIBIT D – ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

I certify I have reviewed EXHIBIT D – ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS and accept as written.

YES

Failure to acknowledge may result in Submittal being deemed non-responsive.

5. CERTIFICATION REGARDING FELONY CONVICTION

Has any officer, director, or an executive performing equivalent duties, of the bidding entity been convicted of a felony during the past ten (10) years? NO

6. CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATION

Except as listed below, no employee, officer, or agent of the firm has any conflicts of interest, real or apparent, due to ownership, other clients, contracts, or interests associated with this project; and, this Submittal is made without prior understanding, agreement, or connection with any corporation, firm, or person submitting a proposal for the same services, and is in all respects fair and without collusion or fraud. Tom Hendon

7. CERTIFICATION REGARDING BACKGROUND CHECKS

Under any County Contract that involves Contractor or subcontractor personnel working in proximity to minors, the Vendor hereby confirms that any personnel so employed will have successfully completed an initial, and subsequent annual, Certified Background Check, completed by the Contractor at no additional cost to the County. The County retains the right to request and review any associated records with or without cause, and to require replacement of any Contractor employee found in violation of this requirement. Contractor shall indemnify the County in full for any adverse act of any such personnel in this regard. Additional requirements may apply in this regard as included within any specific contract award. YES

8. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM

The County does not establish specific goals for minority set-asides however, participation by minority and non-minority qualified firms is strongly encouraged. If the firm is a minority firm or has obtained certification by the State of Florida, Office of Supplier Diversity, (OSD) (CMBE), please indicate the appropriate classification(s) not applicable not applicable and enter OSD Certification Number NA and enter effective date NA to date NA

9. FEDERAL FUNDING REQUIREMENT N/A

10. RECIPROCAL VENDOR PREFERENCE

Vendors are advised the County has established, under Lake County Code, Chapter 2, Article VII, Sections 2-221 and 2-222; a process under which a local vendor preference program applied by another county may be applied in a reciprocal manner within Lake County. The following information is needed to support application of the Code:

- A. Primary business location of the responding Vendor: Bradenton, FL
- B. Does the responding vendor maintain a significant physical location in Lake County at which employees are located and business is regularly transacted: NO If "yes" is checked, provide supporting detail: NA

11. GENERAL VENDOR INFORMATION

Firm Name: C&D Industrial Maintenance LLC Street Address: 2208 58 Ave E City: Bradenton State and ZIP Code: Florida 34203 Mailing Address (if different): NA Telephone: 833-776-5833 Fax: NA Federal Identification Number / TIN: 83-2737095 DUNS Number: 102893715

12. SUBMITTAL SIGNATURE

I hereby certify the information indicated for this Submittal is true and accurate and that my electronic signature shall have the same legal effect as if made under oath; that I am an authorized representative of this Vendor and/or empowered to execute this Submittal on behalf of the Vendor.

ATTACHMENT 1 - SUBMITTAL FORM

I, individually and on behalf of the Vendor, acknowledge and agree to abide by all terms and conditions contained in this solicitation as well as any attachments, exhibits, or addenda.

Name of Legal Representative Submitting this Proposal: *Tom Henden* Date: 1/16/2023 Print Name: Tom Hendon Title: CEO Primary E-mail Address: Tom@cdindmaint.com

Secondary E-mail Address: Brian@cdindmaint.com

The individual signing this Submittal affirms that the facts stated herein are true and that the response to this Solicitation has been submitted on behalf of the aforementioned Vendor.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally blank]

	··· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Type Your Firm's	s Name He	re	
		SAVE AND SUBMIT A	S AN EX	CEL FILE	
		or shall furnish all labor, materials, tools, tra o County. Services shall be performed in a			
		Alterations to locked cells may result	in disqual	ification of submission.	
No.	Bldg No.	Building	No. of openers	Type of openers	Annual Cost to include two (2) inspections per year
1	HB-02	Lake County Administration Bldg, 315 W. Main Street, Tavares	3	Horton -1 Opener Dorma - 1 Opener Stanley - 1 Opener	\$700.00
2	HB-07	Public Defender's Building 123 N. Sinclair Avenue, Tavares	• 1	Horton - 1 Opener	\$500.00
3	HB-11	Courthouse 550 W. Main Steet, Tavares	6	Horton - 4 Opener Horton - 1 Revolving Door	\$1,200.00
4	FB-11	Northwest Regional Tax Service Center, 1720 Citrus Blvd, Leesburg	1	Besam/Assa Abloy Slide Door	\$500.00
5	HB-72	Northeast Regional Tax Service Center, 1800 David Walker, Tavares	1	Stanley Slide Door	\$500.00
6	HB-61	Tax Collector/Property Appraiser, 320 W. Main Street, Tavares	3	Stanley -1 Opener Horton- 2 Openers	\$700.00
7	MB-31	South Lake Regional Tax Service Center, 1505 Hooks Street, Clermont	2	Dorma - 2 Openers	\$600.00
8	HB-31	Agricultural Center, 1951 Woolea Road, Tavares	5	Horton - 2 Openers Stanley - 3 Openers	\$900.00
9	IB-02	East Lake Library, 31340 CR 437, Sorrento	1	Horton - 1 Opener	\$500.00
10	MB-02	Marion Baysinger Library, 756 W. Broad Street, Groveland	1	Stanley - 1 Opener	\$500.00
11	OB-03	Cagans Crossing Library, 16729 Cagan Oaks, Clermont	2	Stanley - 2 Dura Glide Sliding Doors	\$600.00
12	AB-11	Paisley Library, 24954 CR 42, Paisley	1	Dorma - 1 Opener	\$500.00
13	HB-12	Lake County Detention Center, 551 W. Main Street, Tavares	1		\$500.00
		Total Cost for Services as state	d in Exhibi	t A - Scope of Services:	\$8,200.00

Time and Material Charge for Additional Wo	ork:
Hourly Rate 1 Man Regular Working Hours 8am - 5pm	\$200.00
Hourly Rate 1 Man After Working Hours	\$300.00
Marerial to be supplied at cost plus % mark-up	30%

Lake County will not accept nor authorize payment for travel time or expenses of service personnel to any of Lake County's facility locations. The hourly rate must commence on the job site. Billable time will be for service work performed.

1. SCOPE OF WORK

1.1. Purpose

Contractor shall be responsible for Total Responsibility of Inspection, Testing, Maintenance, and Repair services to all automatic entry door openers and associated items operated by County. The Scope of Work represents the minimum standards required with Contractor ultimately responsible to provide for well-maintained systems.

Contractor may be asked to install new automatic door openers during Contract term. Contractor shall supply a cost percentage of mark up for parts/materials and a per/hour rate for any work outside of this Exhibit A – Scope of Work.

1. CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES

Contractor shall:

1.2. Be licensed and fully competent in all aspects of Automatic Door Opener and Revolving Door Maintenance and Repair in a safe manner.

1.2.1. Employ only skilled, qualified workers.

- 1.3. Provide all-inclusive quotes to provide 100% turnkey projects that include common installation, repairs, preventative maintenance, and replacement of fixtures/equipment.
 - 1.3.1. Include all required labor, material, equipment, plans, engineering, surveys, permitting and local and state inspections.
 - 1.3.2. Include costs for general housekeeping and work area clean up.
 - 1.3.3. Include travel time.
 - 1.3.4. Change orders shall not be issued for incidental items or tasks that should have been reasonably construed to be part of the project by the Contractor.
- 1.4. Obtain licenses, permits, and fees (including inspection fees) as required to comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations, and code requirements applicable to complete projects.
- 1.5. Be responsible inspections, penalties, fees, or fines for projects.
- 1.6. Be responsible for damages caused as the result of completing projects.
- 1.7. Furnish all tools and equipment (possibly cranes, lift trucks, boom trucks, cherry pickers, etc.) to complete projects timely.
- 1.8. Be responsible to maintain and repair the automatic door openers listed. County reserves to add or subtract from this list. Systems must be kept operating as designed and in accordance with all current manufacturer specifications, and any applicable federal, state, and local code requirements.
 - 1.8.1. The definition of a full maintenance and service repair contract is Contractor agrees to take total responsibility for the automatic door systems identified. Contractor assumes all responsibility to keep the systems operating safely and efficiently during Contract term.
- 1.9. Provide pricing for semi-annual on-site preventative maintenance inspections for automatic door openers including, but not be limited to, all parts/materials, labor, overhead, and travel expenses to keep all openers functioning safety and to manufactures specifications. On site repairs will be required on an ongoing or an on-demand basis for Contract term.
- 1.10. Coordinate inspections and repairs through the Facilities Project Manager or designee. Only the Facilities Project Manager or designee shall be authorized to request service/repair work. Ample

EXHIBIT A – SCOPE OF WORK 23-911 AUTOMATIC AND REVOLVING DOOR MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

notice must be given to County about upcoming inspections so that the occupants of the buildings can be notified of the upcoming work.

- 1.10.1. An inspection report supplied by Contractor must be completed for each visit and must include a detailed list of services performed. Contractor shall provide a copy of the intended report for County approval prior to being utilized. This inspection report must be emailed to County Project Manager and must be included with the invoice for payment.
- 1.10.2. Repair response time must be less than twelve (12) hours including weekends and holidays.
- 1.11. Inspect all safety devices completely during each visit. Contractor shall make the appropriate repairs if any system is not operating according to the manufacturer's specifications. Contractor shall be responsible for system to operate properly and to specifications.
 - 1.11.1. Contractor shall ensure all required safety labeling is present and in good condition. If it is found not to be sufficient, a quote will be supplied to the Project Manager to supply and install the new required decals.
 - 1.11.2. The "Breakout" function of automatic sliding doors must be tested at each visit.
 - 1.11.3. The "Force" it takes to fully open the door must be tested and recorded on a report.
 - 1.11.4. Any adjustments of the hardware of the door to ensure smooth and proper operation along with adjustments to sensors and the safety zones that are needed must be part of the inspections.
 - 1.11.5. All American National Standards Institute (ANSI) and Builders Hardware Manufactures Association (BHMA) ABSI/BHMA standards 156.10 and 156.19 must be followed while completing all work as part of the contract.
- 1.12. Contractor shall abide by all items that apply to automatic door openers in Chapter four (4) of the Americans with Disabilities (ADA) guidelines and standards.

[*The remainder of this page intentionally left blank*]

A. CONTRACTOR will purchase and maintain at all times during the term of this Contract, without cost or expense to the COUNTY, policies of insurance as indicated below, with a company or companies authorized to do business in the State of Florida, and which are acceptable to the COUNTY, insuring the CONTRACTOR against any and all claims, demands, or causes of action, for injuries received or damage to property relating to the performance of duties, services, or obligations of the CONTRACTOR under the terms and provisions of the Contract. An original certificate of insurance, indicating that CONTRACTOR has coverage in accordance with the requirements of this section must be received and accepted by the COUNTY prior to contract execution or before any work begins. It will be furnished by CONTRACTOR to the COUNTY'S Project Manager and Procurement Services Director within five working days of such request. The parties agree that the policies of insurance and confirming certificates of insurance will insure the CONTRACTOR in accordance with the following minimum limits:

i. General Liability insurance on forms no more restrictive than the latest edition of the Occurrence Form Commercial General Liability policy (CG 00 01) of the Insurance Services Office or equivalent without restrictive endorsements, with the following minimum limits and coverage:

Each Occurrence/General Aggregate	\$1,000,000/2,000,000
Products-Completed Operations	\$2,000,000
Personal & Adv. Injury	\$1,000,000
Fire Damage	\$50,000
Medical Expense	\$5,000
Contractual Liability	Included

ii. Automobile liability insurance, including owned, non-owned, and hired autos with the minimum Combined Single Limit of \$1,000,000

iii. Workers' compensation insurance based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts in accordance with Chapter 440, Florida Statutes, and any other applicable law requiring workers' compensation (Federal, maritime, etc.). If not required by law to maintain workers compensation insurance, the CONTRACTOR must provide a notarized statement that if he or she is injured, he or she will not hold the COUNTY responsible for any payment or compensation.

iv. Employers Liability with the following minimum limits and coverage:

Each Accident	\$1,000,000
Disease-Each Employer	\$1,000,000
Disease-Policy Limit	\$1,000,000

B. Lake County, a Political Subdivision of the State of Florida, and the Board of County Commissioners, will be named as additional insured as their interest may appear all applicable policies. Certificates of insurance must identify the RFP or ITB number in the Description of Operations section on the Certificate.

C. CONTRACTOR must provide a minimum of 30 days prior written notice to the County of any change, cancellation, or nonrenewal of the required insurance.

EXHIBIT B – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

D. Certificates of insurance must evidence a waiver of subrogation in favor of the COUNTY, that coverage must be primary and noncontributory, and that each evidenced policy includes a Cross Liability or Severability of Interests provision, with no requirement of premium by the COUNTY.

E. CONTRACTOR must provide a copy of all policy endorsements, reflecting the required coverage, with Lake County listed as an additional insured along with all required provisions to include waiver of subrogation. Contracts cannot be completed without this required insurance documentation. A certificate of insurance (COI) will not be accepted in lieu of the policy endorsements.

 F. Certificate holder must be: LAKE COUNTY, A POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA, AND THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS.
P.O. BOX 7800
TAVARES, FL 32778-7800

G. All self-insured retentions will appear on the certificates and will be subject to approval by the COUNTY. At the option of the COUNTY, the insurer will reduce or eliminate such selfinsured retentions; or CONTRACTOR will be required to procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related claims expenses.

H. The COUNTY will be exempt from, and in no way liable for, any sums of money, which may represent a deductible or self-insured retention in any insurance policy. The payment of such deductible or self-insured retention will be the sole responsibility of the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor providing such insurance.

I. CONTRACTOR will be responsible for subcontractors and their insurance. Subcontractors are to provide Certificates of Insurance to the COUNTY evidencing coverage and terms in accordance with the CONTRACTOR'S requirements.

J. Failure to obtain and maintain such insurance as set out above will be considered a breach of contract and may result in termination of the contract for default.

K. Neither approval by the COUNTY of any insurance supplied by CONTRACTOR, nor a failure to disapprove that insurance, will relieve CONTRACTOR of full responsibility of liability, damages, and accidents as set forth herein.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.]

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS 1	l
DEFINITIONS 1	i
INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS 1	i
PREPARATION OF PROPOSALS	
COLLUSION	2
PROHIBITION AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES	2
CONTRACTING WITH COUNTY EMPLOYEES	
INCURRED EXPENSES	3
AWARD	3
GRANT FUNDING	3
STATE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS	1
PRIME CONTRACTOR	1
SUBCONTRACTING	4
DISADVANTAGED BUSINESSES	1
GENERAL CONTRACT CONDITIONS	1
GOVERNING LAW	4
COMPLIANCE OF LAWS, REGULATIONS, AND LICENSES	1
CONTRACT EXTENSION	5
MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT	5
ASSIGNMENT	5
NON-EXCLUSIVITY	5
OTHER AGENCIES	5
CONTINUATION OF WORK	5
WARRANTY	
DEFICIENCIES IN WORK TO BE CORRECTED BY THE CONTRACTOR	5
COUNTY IS TAX-EXEMPT	
SHIPPING TERMS, F.O.B. DESTINATION	5
ACCEPTANCE OF GOODS OR SERVICES	5
ESTIMATED QUANTITIES	
PURCHASE OF OTHER ITEMS	
SAFETY	
MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET (MSDS)	7
TOBACCO PRODUCTS	7
CLEAN-UP	
PROTECTION OF PROPERTY	8
CERTIFICATE OF COMPETENCY/LICENSURE, PERMITS, AND FEES	8
TRUTH IN NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATE	8
COMPETENCY OF VENDORS AND ASSOCIATED SUBCONTRACTORS	8
RESPONSIBILITY AS EMPLOYER	
MINIMUM WAGES	
PRICE REDETERMINATIONS	
INDEMNIFICATION	
TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE	9

TERMINATION DUE TO UNAVAILABILITY OF CONTINUING FUNDING	9
TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT	9
FRAUD AND MISREPRESENTATION	10
RIGHT TO AUDIT	
PROPRIETARY/CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION	
PUBLIC RECORDS LAW	10
COPYRIGHTS	12
SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY	12
COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL STANDARDS	
E-VERIFY	12
HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPPA)	12
FORCE MAJEURE	13
NO CLAIM FOR DAMAGES	
CERTIFICATION REGARDING SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES	
ANTI-TRAFFICKING RELATED ACTIVITIES	
NOTICES	14

DEFINITIONS

Contract: The agreement to perform the services set forth in a document signed by both parties with any attachments specifically incorporated.

Contractor: The Vendor to whom award has been made.

County: Lake County, Florida, a political subdivision of the State of Florida.

Proposal: Any offer submitted in response to a solicitation.

Solicitation: The written document requesting bids, quotes, or proposals from the marketplace. **Vendor:** Any entity responding to a solicitation or performing under any resulting contract.

INSTRUCTIONS TO VENDORS

- A. <u>Vendor Qualification</u>: The County requires Vendors provide evidence of compliance with the requirements below upon request:
 - 1. Disclosure of Employment.
 - 2. Disclosure of Ownership.
 - 3. Drug-Free Workplace.
 - 4. W-9 and 8109 Forms as required by the Internal Revenue Service.
 - 5. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).
 - 6. Conflict of Interest.
 - 7. Debarment Disclosure Affidavit.
 - 8. Nondiscrimination.
 - 9. Family Leave.
 - 10. Antitrust Laws By acceptance of any contract, the Vendor agrees to comply with all applicable antitrust laws.
- B. <u>Public Entity Crimes:</u> Pursuant to Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, a person or affiliate who has been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction of a public entity crime may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, subcontractor, or contractor under a contract with any public entity in excess of the threshold amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida Statutes, for Category Two for a period of thirty-six (36) months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list.
- C. <u>Contents of Solicitation and Vendors' Responsibilities</u>: The Vendor shall be thoroughly familiar with the requirements of this solicitation. Ignorance of these matters by the Vendor will not be accepted as a basis for varying the requirements of the County, or the compensation to be paid.
- E. <u>Restricted Discussions</u>: From the date of solicitation issuance until final County action, Vendors will not discuss any part of the solicitation with any employee, agent, or other representative of the County except as expressly authorized by the designated procurement representative. The only communications that will be considered pertinent to a solicitation are appropriately signed written documents from the Vendor to the designated procurement representative and any relevant written document promulgated by the designated procurement representative.
- F. <u>Changes to Proposal</u>: Prior to the scheduled due date, a Vendor may change its Proposal by submitting a new one with a letter on the firm's letterhead, signed by an authorized agent stating that the new submittal replaces the original. The new submittal must contain the letter and all information as required in the solicitation.
- G. <u>Withdrawal of Proposal</u>: A Proposal will be irrevocable unless it is withdrawn as provided in a solicitation. A Proposal may be withdrawn, either physically or by written notice, at any time prior to solicitation award. If withdrawn by written notice, that notice must be addressed to, and received

by, the designated procurement representative. The letter must be on company letterhead and signed by an authorized agent of the Vendor.

- H. <u>Conflicts within the Solicitation</u>: Where there appears to be a conflict between the General Terms and Conditions, Special Conditions, the Technical Specifications, the Pricing Section, or any addendum issued, the order of precedence will be: the last addendum issued, the Proposal Price Section, the Technical Specifications, the Special Conditions, and then the General Terms and Conditions. It is incumbent upon the Vendor to identify such conflicts to the designated procurement representative prior to the Proposal due date.
- I. <u>Prompt Payment Terms</u>: Payment for all purchases by County agencies will be made in a timely manner and interest payments will be made on late payments in accordance with Part VII, Chapter 218, Florida Statutes, known as the Florida Prompt Payment Act. The Vendor may offer cash discounts for prompt payments; however, such discounts will not be considered in determining the lowest price during Proposal evaluation.

PREPARATION OF PROPOSALS

- A. The pricing section of a solicitation defines requirements of items to be purchased and must be completed and submitted with the Proposal. Use of any other form or alteration of the form may result in rejection of the Proposal.
- B. The Proposal submitted must be legible. Vendors shall type or use an ink to complete the Proposal. All changes must be crossed out and initialed in ink. Failure to comply with these requirements may cause the bid to be rejected.
- C. An authorized agent of the Vendor's firm must sign the Proposal. The County may reject any Proposal not signed by an authorized agent.
- D. The Vendor may submit alternate Proposals for the same solicitation provided that such offer is allowable under the terms and conditions. The alternate Proposal must meet or exceed the minimum requirements and be submitted as a separate Proposal marked "Alternate Proposal."
- E. When there is a discrepancy between the unit prices and any extended prices, the unit prices will prevail. The County reserves the right to allow for clarification of questionable entries and the correction of obvious mistakes.
- F. Any Proposal received after the designated receipt date will be considered late and will not be considered for award.

COLLUSION

Where two (2) or more related parties each submit a Proposal for the same contract, such Proposals will be presumed to be collusive. Furthermore, any prior understanding, agreement, or connection between two (2) or more corporations, firms, or persons submitting a Proposal for the same materials, supplies, services, or equipment will also be presumed to be collusive. Proposals found to be collusive will be rejected. Vendors which have been found to have engaged in collusion may be considered non-responsible and may be suspended or debarred. Any contract resulting from collusive bidding may be terminated for default.

PROHIBITION AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES

The Vendor warrants that they have not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Vendor to solicit or secure the Contract and that they have not paid or agreed to pay any person, company, corporation, individual, or firm, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Vendor, any consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of the Contract.

CONTRACTING WITH COUNTY EMPLOYEES

Any County employee or immediate family member seeking to contract with the County shall seek a conflict of interest opinion from the County Attorney prior to submittal of a Proposal. The affected employee shall disclose the employee's assigned function within the County and interest or the interest of his or her immediate family in the proposed contract and the nature of the intended contract.

INCURRED EXPENSES

A solicitation does not commit the County to make an award nor will the County be responsible for any cost or expense which may be incurred by any Vendor in preparing and submitting a Proposal, or any cost or expense incurred by any Vendor prior to the execution of a purchase order or contract.

AWARD

- A. The Contract resulting from a solicitation may be awarded to the responsible Vendor which submits a Proposal determined to provide the best value to the County with price, technical, and other applicable factors considered. The County reserves the right to reject any and all Proposals, to waive irregularities or technicalities, and to re-advertise for all or any part of this solicitation as deemed in its best interest. The County will be the sole judge of its best interest.
- B. When there are multiple line items in a solicitation, the County reserves the right to award on an individual item basis, any combination of items, total low bid, or in whichever manner deemed in the best interest of the County. This provision specifically supersedes any method of award criteria stated in the solicitation when such action is necessary to protect the best interests of the County.
- C. The County reserves the right to reject any and all Proposals if it is determined that prices are excessive or determined to be unreasonable, or it is otherwise determined to be in the County's best interest to do so.
- D. The County reserves the right to reject offers containing terms or conditions contradictory to the County's.
- E. Award of a solicitation will be made to firms satisfying all necessary legal requirements to do business with the County. The County may conduct a pre-award inspection of the Vendor's site or hold a pre-award qualification hearing to determine if the Vendor can perform the requirements of a solicitation.
- F. The Vendor's performance as a Contractor or subcontractor on previous County contracts will be considered in evaluating the responsibility of the Vendor.
- G. Any tie situations will be resolved in consonance with current written County procedure.
- H. The County has imposed a reciprocal match local vendor preference practice to ensure an equal procurement environment for all potential vendors unless prohibited by the funding source. More information is available on <u>Section 2-222</u>, Local Vendor Preference.
- I. Award of the contract resulting from this solicitation may be predicated on compliance with and submittal of all required documents as stipulated in the solicitation.
- J. A Vendor wishing to protest any award decision resulting from a solicitation may do so per the <u>Procurement Protest Procedures site</u>.

GRANT FUNDING

In the event any part of a Contract is to be funded by federal, state, or other local agency monies, the Vendor hereby agrees to comply with all requirements of the funding entity applicable to the use of the monies, including full application of requirements involving the use of minority firms, women's business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms. Contractors are advised that payments under the Contract may

be withheld pending completion and submission of all required forms and documents required of the Contractor pursuant to the grant funding requirements.

STATE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS

Any entity conducting business in Florida shall either be registered or have applied for registration with the Florida Department of State in accordance with Florida law, unless exempt from registration. A copy of the registration may be required prior to award of a Contract. Additional information is available by visiting the <u>Florida Department of State home page</u>.

PRIME CONTRACTOR

The Vendor awarded a Contract shall act as the Prime Contractor and will assume full responsibility for the successful performance under the Contract. The Awarded Vendor (Contractor) will be considered the sole point of contact regarding meeting all requirements of the Contract. All subcontractors may be subject to advance review by the County regarding competency and security concerns. No change in subcontractors may be made without the consent of the County after the award of the Contract. Contractor will be responsible for all insurance, permits, licenses, and related matters for any and all subcontractors. County may require the Contractor to provide any insurance certificates required by the work to be performed even if the subcontractor is self-insured.

SUBCONTRACTING

Unless otherwise stipulated in a solicitation, the Contractor shall not subcontract any portion of the work without the prior written consent of the County. Subcontracting without the prior consent of the County may result in termination of the Contract for default.

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESSES

The County has adopted policies which assure and encourage the full participation of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) in the provision of goods and services. The County encourages joint ventures between majority-owned firms and qualified disadvantaged/minority/women-owned firms.

GENERAL CONTRACT CONDITIONS

The Contract will be binding upon and will inure to the benefit of each of the parties and respective successors and permitted assigns. The Contract may not be amended, released, discharged, rescinded or abandoned, except by a written instrument duly executed by the parties. The failure of any party at any time to enforce any of the provisions of the Contract will in no way constitute or be construed as a waiver of such provision or of any other provision of the Contract, nor in any way affect the validity of, or the right to enforce, each and every provision of the Contract. Any dispute arising during Contract performance that is not readily rectified by coordination between the Contractor and the County user department will be referred to Procurement Services.

GOVERNING LAW

The interpretation, effect, and validity of any contract will be governed by the laws and regulations of the State of Florida, and Lake County, Florida. Venue of any court action will be solely in Lake County, Florida. The Contractor hereby waives its right to a jury trial.

COMPLIANCE OF LAWS, REGULATIONS, AND LICENSES

The Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations applicable to provision of the goods or services specified in a solicitation. During the term of a Contract, the Contractor assures that it is in compliance with Title VII of the 1964 Civil Rights Act, as amended, and the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992, in that the Contractor does not on the grounds of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, age, disability or marital status, discriminate in any form or manner against its employees or

applicants for employment. The Contractor understands that any Contract is conditioned upon the veracity of this statement.

CONTRACT EXTENSION

The County has the unilateral option to extend a Contract for up to ninety (90) calendar days beyond the current Contract period. In such event, the County will notify the Contractor in writing of such extensions. The Contract may be extended beyond the initial ninety (90) day extension upon mutual agreement between the County and the Contractor. Exercise of the above options requires the prior approval of the Procurement Services Director.

MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT

Any Contract resulting from a solicitation may be modified by mutual consent of duly authorized parties, in writing through the issuance of a modification to the Contract or purchase order as appropriate. This presumes the modification itself complies with all applicable County procedures.

ASSIGNMENT

The Contractor shall not assign or transfer any Contract resulting from a solicitation, including any rights, title or interest in the Contract, or its power to execute such Contract to any entity without the prior written consent of the County. This provision includes any acquisition or hostile takeover of the Contractor. Failure to comply may result in termination of the Contract for default.

NON-EXCLUSIVITY

It is the intent of the County to enter into an agreement that will satisfy its needs as described within a solicitation. However, the County reserves the right to perform, or cause to be performed, all or any of the work and services described in a solicitation in the manner deemed to represent its best interests. In no case will the County be liable for billings in excess of the quantity of goods or services provided under the Contract.

OTHER AGENCIES

Other governmental agencies may make purchases in accordance with the Contract with Contractor consent. Purchases are governed by the Contract's terms and conditions except for the change in agency name. Each agency will be responsible and liable for its own purchases for materials or services received.

CONTINUATION OF WORK

Any work that commences prior to, and will extend, beyond the expiration date of any Contract period must, unless terminated by mutual written agreement between the County and the Contractor, continue until completion without change to the then current prices, terms and conditions.

WARRANTY

All warranties express and implied, must be made available to the County for goods and services covered by a solicitation. All goods furnished must be fully guaranteed by the Contractor against factory defects and workmanship. They will be covered by the most favorable commercial warranty given for comparable quantities of products or services and the rights and remedies provided in the Contract will be in addition to the warranty and do not limit any right afforded to the County by any other provision of a solicitation. Contractor shall correct any and all apparent and latent defects that may occur within the manufacturer's standard warranty period at no expense to the County. The special conditions of a solicitation may supersede the manufacturer's standard warranty.

DEFICIENCIES IN WORK TO BE CORRECTED BY THE CONTRACTOR

Contractor shall promptly correct all apparent and latent deficiencies or defects in work, or any work that fails to conform to the Contract documents regardless of project completion status. All corrections

must be made within seven (7) calendar days after such rejected defects, deficiencies, or nonconformances are verbally reported to the Contractor by the County's project administrator. Contractor must bear all costs of correcting such rejected work. If the Contractor fails to correct the work within the period specified, the County may, at its discretion, notify the Contractor, in writing, that the Contractor is subject to contractual default provisions if the corrections are not completed to the satisfaction of the County within seven (7) calendar days of receipt of the notice. If the Contractor fails to correct the work within the period specified in the notice, the County may place the Contractor in default, obtain the services of another Contractor to correct the deficiencies, and charge the incumbent Contractor for these costs, either through a deduction from the final payment owed to the County may terminate the contract for default.

COUNTY IS TAX-EXEMPT

When purchasing on a direct basis, the County is generally exempt from Federal Excise Taxes and all State of Florida sales and use taxes (85-8013874700C-1). Visit <u>Lake County Tax Exemption Certificate</u> <u>page</u> to print a copy of the certificate. Except for items specifically identified by the Contractor and accepted by the County for direct County purchase under the Sales Tax Recovery Program, Contractors doing business with the County are not exempt from paying sales tax to their suppliers for materials to fulfill contractual obligations with the County, nor will any Contractor be authorized to use any of the County's Tax Exemptions in securing such materials.

SHIPPING TERMS, F.O.B. DESTINATION

The F.O.B. point for any product ordered will be F.O.B.: DESTINATION – Inside Delivery, FREIGHT ALLOWED. The County will not consider any Proposal showing a F.O.B. point other than F.O.B.: Destination – Inside Delivery.

ACCEPTANCE OF GOODS OR SERVICES

The products delivered as a result of a solicitation will remain the property of the Contractor, and services rendered under the Contract will not be deemed complete, until a physical inspection and actual usage of the products or services is accepted by the County and is in compliance with the terms in the contract.

Any goods or services purchased as a result of a solicitation or Contract may be tested/inspected for compliance with specifications. In the event that any aspect of the goods or services provided is found to be defective or does not conform to the specifications, the County reserves the right to terminate the Contract or initiate corrective action on the part of the Contractor, to include return of any non-compliant goods to the Contractor at the Contractor's expense, requiring the Contractor to either provide a direct replacement for the item, or a full credit for the returned item. The Contractor shall not assess any additional charges for any conforming action taken by the County under this clause. The County will not be responsible to pay for any product or service that does not conform to the Contract specifications.

In addition, any defective product or service or any product or service not delivered or performed by the date specified in a purchase order or Contract, may be procured by the County on the open market, and any increase in cost may be charged against the Contractor. Any cost incurred by the County in any reprocurement plus any increased product or service cost will be withheld from any monies owed to the Contractor by the County for any Contract or financial obligation.

ESTIMATED QUANTITIES

Estimated quantities or dollars are for the Vendor's guidance only and may be used in the award evaluation process. No guarantee is expressed or implied as to quantities or dollar value that will be used during the Contract period. The County is not obligated to place any order for a given amount subsequent

to the award of a solicitation. In no event will the County be liable for payments in excess of the amount due for quantities of goods or services actually ordered.

PURCHASE OF OTHER ITEMS

While the County has listed all major items within a solicitation, there may be ancillary or similar items purchased by the County during the term of a Contract. The Contractor will provide a price quote for the ancillary items. The County may request price quotes from all Contractors under Contract if there are multiple Contracts. The County reserves the right to award these ancillary items to the primary Contractor, another Contract Contractor based on the lowest price quoted, or to acquire the items through a separate solicitation.

Although a Contract may identify specific locations to be serviced, it is hereby agreed and understood that any County department or facility may be added or deleted to the Contract at the option of the County. The location change will be addressed by formal Contract modification. The County may obtain price quotes for the additional facilities from other Vendors if fair and reasonable pricing is not obtained from the Contractor, or for other reasons at the County's discretion. It is hereby agreed and understood that the County may delete service locations when such service is no longer required, upon fourteen (14) calendar days' written notice to the Contractor.

SAFETY

The Contractor will be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the work and for complying with all requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration Act (OSHA). The Contractor shall take all necessary precautions for the safety of and shall provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury, or loss to persons or property.

The Contractor shall provide all standard equipment, work operations, safety equipment, personal protective equipment, and lighting required or mandated by State, Federal, OSHA, or Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA) regulations.

The Contractor shall designate a competent person of its organization whose duty will be the prevention of accidents at the site. This person must be literate and able to communicate fully in the English language because of the necessity to read job instructions and signs, as well as the need for conversing with County personnel. This person must be the Contractor's superintendent unless otherwise designated in writing by the Contractor to the Contract Manager.

MATERIAL SAFETY DATA SHEET (MSDS)

The Contractor is responsible to ensure the County has received the latest version of any MSDS required by 29 C.F.R. Section 1910.1200 with the first shipment of any hazardous material. The Contractor shall promptly provide a new MSDS to the County with the new information relevant to the specific material at any time the content of an MSDS is revised.

TOBACCO PRODUCTS

Tobacco use, including both smoke and smokeless tobacco, is prohibited on County owned property.

CLEAN-UP

If applicable, all unusable materials and debris must be removed from the premises at the end of each workday and disposed of in an appropriate manner. The Contractor shall thoroughly clean up all areas where work has been involved as mutually agreed with the associated user department's project manager upon final completion.

PROTECTION OF PROPERTY

All existing structures, utilities, services, roads, trees, shrubbery, and property in which the County has an interest must always be protected against damage or interrupted services by the Contractor during the term of a Contract. The Contractor will be held responsible for repairing or replacing property to the satisfaction of the County which is damaged by reason of the Contractor's operation on the property. In the event the Contractor fails to comply with these requirements, the County reserves the right to secure the required services and charge the costs of such services back to the Contractor.

CERTIFICATE OF COMPETENCY/LICENSURE, PERMITS, AND FEES

Any Vendor that submits an offer in response to a County solicitation shall, at the time of such offer if required, hold a valid Certificate of Competency or appropriate current license issued by the State or County Examining Board qualifying the Vendor to perform the work proposed. If work for other trades is required in conjunction with a solicitation, and such work will be performed by subcontractors hired by the Vendor, an applicable Certificate of Competency/license issued to the subcontractors must be submitted with the Vendor's offer. The County may at its option and in its best interest, allow the Vendor to supply the subcontractors certificate/license to the County during the offer evaluation period. The Contractor is responsible to ensure that all required licenses, permits, and fees (to include any inspection fees) required for a project are obtained and paid for, and shall comply with all laws, ordinances, regulations, and building or other code requirements applicable to the work contemplated in a solicitation. Damages, penalties, or fines imposed on the County or the Contractor for failure to obtain required licenses, permits, inspection or other fees, or inspections will be borne by the Contractor.

TRUTH IN NEGOTIATION CERTIFICATE

Any organization awarded a Contract must execute a truth-in-negotiation certificate stating that the wage rates and other factual unit costs are accurate, complete, and current, at the time of contracting for each Contract that exceeds \$195,000.00. Any Contract requiring this certificate will contain a provision that the original Contract price and any additions will be adjusted to exclude any significant sums by which the County determines the Contract price was increased due to inaccurate, incomplete, or non-current wage rates and other factual unit costs. All such Contract adjustments will be made within one (1) year following the end of the Contract.

COMPETENCY OF VENDORS AND ASSOCIATED SUBCONTRACTORS

Proposals will be considered from firms which are regularly engaged in the business of providing or distributing the goods or services described in the solicitation, and who can produce evidence of a consistent satisfactory record of performance. The County may consider any evidence available to it of the financial, technical, and other qualifications and abilities of any Vendor responding under a solicitation, including past performance with the County. Vendors must have sufficient financial support and organization to ensure satisfactory delivery under the stated solicitation terms and conditions of any Contract awarded. In the event the Vendor intends to subcontract any part of its work or will obtain the goods specifically offered under the Contract from another source of supply, the Vendor may be required to verify the competency of its subcontractor or supplier. The County reserves the right, before awarding the Contract, to require a Vendor to submit such evidence of its or its subcontractor's qualifications.

RESPONSIBILITY AS EMPLOYER

The employees of the Contractor will always be considered its employees, and not an employees or agents of the County. The Contractor shall provide employees capable of performing the work as required. The County may require the Contractor to remove any employee it deems unacceptable. All employees of the Contractor may be required to wear appropriate identification.

MINIMUM WAGES

Under the Contract, the wage rate paid to all laborers, mechanics and apprentices employed by the Contractor for the work under the Contract, must not be less than the prevailing wage rates for similar classifications of work as established by the Federal Government and enforced by the U.S. Department of Labor, Wages and Hours Division, and Florida's Minimum Wage requirements in Article X, Section 24 (f) of the Florida Constitution and enforced by the Florida Legislature by statute or the State Agency for Workforce Innovation by rule, whichever is higher.

PRICE REDETERMINATIONS

Contractor may petition for a price redetermination with documented increases in the cost of wages, fuel, or materials within 30 calendar days of the anniversary date of the Contract. Price redeterminations will be based upon changes documented by the applicable Employment Cost Index (ECI) or Producer Price Index (PPI) as published on the *Bureau of Labor Statistics site here*. Contractor may petition for price redetermination for Contractor's minimum wage employees should the minimum wage increase during the Contract. Upon verification, the County may grant an increase matching the minimum wage increase.

INDEMNIFICATION

To the extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the County and its officers, employees, agents and instrumentalities from any and all liability, losses or damages, including attorneys' fees and costs of defense, which the County or its officers, employees, agents or instrumentalities may incur as a result of claims, demands, suits, causes of actions or proceedings of any kind or nature arising out of, relating to or resulting from the performance of the Contract by the Contractor or its employees, agents, servants, partners, principals or subcontractors. The Contractor shall pay all claims and losses in connection with those claims and losses, and shall investigate and defend all claims, suits or actions of any kind or nature in the name of the County, where applicable, including appellate proceedings, and shall pay all costs, judgments, and attorneys' fees which may be incurred. The Contractor expressly understands and agrees that any insurance protection required by the Contract or otherwise provided by the Contractor will in no way limit the responsibility to indemnify, keep and hold harmless and defend the County or its officers, employees, agents and instrumentalities as provided in a solicitation or any Contract arising from a solicitation.

TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

The County, at its sole discretion, reserves the right to terminate the Contract upon thirty (30) days' written notice. Upon receipt of such notice, the Contractor shall not incur any additional costs under the Contract. The County will be liable only for reasonable costs incurred by the Contractor prior to notice of termination. The County will be the sole judge of "reasonable costs."

TERMINATION DUE TO UNAVAILABILITY OF CONTINUING FUNDING

When funds are not appropriated or otherwise made available to support continuation of performance in a current or subsequent fiscal year, the Contract will be cancelled, and the Contractor will be reimbursed for the reasonable value of any non-recurring costs incurred amortized in the price of the supplies or services/tasks delivered under the contract.

TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT

The County reserves the right to terminate any Contract arising from a solicitation, in part or in whole, or affect other appropriate remedy in the event the Contractor fails to perform in accordance with the terms and conditions stated in the Contract. The County further reserves the right to suspend or debar the Contractor in accordance with the County's ordinances, resolutions and administrative orders. The Contractor will be notified by letter of the County's intent to terminate and the Contractor will be given

ten (10) calendar days to cure the breach. In the event of termination for default, the County may procure the required goods and services from any source and use any method deemed in its best interest. All reprocurement costs will be borne by the Contractor.

FRAUD AND MISREPRESENTATION

Any individual, corporation or other entity that attempts to meet its contractual obligations through fraud, misrepresentation or other material misstatement, may be debarred for up to five (5) years. The County as a further sanction may terminate or cancel any other Contracts with such individual, corporation or entity with such Contractor held responsible for all direct or indirect costs associated with termination or cancellation, including attorneys' fees.

RIGHT TO AUDIT

The County reserves the right to require the Contractor to submit to an audit, by any auditor of the County's choosing. The Contractor shall provide access to all of its records, which relate directly or indirectly to the contract at its place of business during regular business hours. The Contractor shall retain all records pertaining to the contract and upon request make them available to the County for three (3) complete calendar years following expiration of the contract. The Contractor agrees to provide such assistance as may be necessary to facilitate the review or audit by the County to ensure compliance with applicable accounting and financial standards.

If the Contractor provides technology services, the Contractor must provide Statement of Standards for Attestations Engagements (SSAE) 16 or 18 and System and Service Organization Control (SOC) reports upon request by the County. The SOC reports must be full Type II reports that include the Contractor's description of control processes, and the independent auditor's evaluation of the design and operating effectiveness of controls. The cost of the reports will be paid by the Contractor.

If an audit inspection or examination pursuant to this section discloses overpricing or overcharges of any nature by the Contractor to the County in excess of one percent (1%) of the total contract billings, in addition to making adjustments for the overcharges, the reasonable actual cost of the County's audit must be reimbursed to the County by the Contractor. Any adjustments or payments which must be made as a result of any such audit or inspection of the Contractor's invoices or records must be made within a reasonable amount of time, but in no event may the time exceed ninety (90) calendar days, from presentation of the County's audit findings to the Contractor.

This provision is hereby considered to be included within, and applicable to, any subcontractor agreement entered into by the Contractor in performance of any work under the contract.

PROPRIETARY/CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

Vendors are hereby notified that all information submitted as part of a Proposal will be available for public inspection in compliance with Chapter 119 of the Florida Statutes (the "Public Record Act"). The Vendor should not submit any information in response to a solicitation which the Vendor considers proprietary or confidential. The submission of any information to the County in connection with a solicitation will be deemed a waiver from release of the submitted information unless such information is exempt or confidential under the Public Records Act.

PUBLIC RECORDS LAW

Pursuant to section 119.0701(2)(a), Florida Statutes, the County is required to provide Contractor with this statement and establish the following requirements as contractual obligations pursuant to the contract:

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE CONTRACTOR'S DUTY

TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS SOLICITATION, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 352-343-9839, <u>PURCHASING@LAKECOUNTYFL.GOV</u>, BY MAIL, OFFICE OF PROCUREMENT SERVICES, ATTN: RON FALANGA, P.O. BOX 7800 TAVARES, FL 32778.

By entering into the Contract, Contractor acknowledges and agrees that any records maintained, generated, received, or kept in connection with, or related to the performance of services provided under, the Contract are public records subject to the public records disclosure requirements of section 119.07(1), Florida Statutes, and Article I, section 24 of the Florida Constitution. Pursuant to section 119.0701, Florida Statutes, any Contractor entering into a contract for services with the County is required to:

- A. Keep and maintain public records required by the County to perform the services and work provided pursuant to the Contract.
- B. Upon request from the County's custodian of public records, provide the County with a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.
- C. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Contract term and following completion or termination of the Contract if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the County.
- D. Upon completion or termination of the Contract, transfer, at no cost, to the County all public records in the possession of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the County to perform the service. If the Contractor transfers all public records to the County upon completion or termination of the Contract, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the Contractor shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the County, upon request from the County's custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the County.

Requests to inspect or copy public records relating to the County's Contract for services must be made directly to the County. If Contractor receives any such request, Contractor shall instruct the requestor to contact the County. If the County does not possess the records requested, the County shall immediately notify the Contractor of such request, and the Contractor must provide the records to the County or otherwise allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time.

Contractor acknowledges that failure to provide the public records to the County within a reasonable time may be subject to penalties under section 119.10, Florida Statutes. Contractor further agrees not to release any records that are statutorily confidential or otherwise exempt from disclosure without first receiving prior written authorization from the County. Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold the County harmless for and against any and all claims, damage awards, and causes of action arising from the Contractor's failure to comply with the public records disclosure requirements of section 119.07(1), Florida Statutes, or by Contractor's failure to maintain public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from the public records disclosure requirements, including, but not limited to, any third party claims or awards for attorney's fees and costs arising therefrom. Contractor authorizes County to seek

declaratory, injunctive, or other appropriate relief against Contractor from a Circuit Court in Lake County on an expedited basis to enforce the requirements of this section.

COPYRIGHTS

Any copyright derived from a Contract will belong to the author. The author and the Contractor shall expressly assign to the County nonexclusive, royalty free rights to use any and all information provided by the Contractor in any deliverable or report for the County's use which may include publishing in County documents and distribution as the County deems to be in its best interests. If anything included in any deliverable limits the rights of the County to use the information, the deliverable will be considered defective and not acceptable and the Contractor will not be eligible for any compensation.

The County owns and retains all proprietary rights in its logos, trademarks, trade names, and copyrighted images (Intellectual Property). As such, nothing in any solicitation permits or shall be construed as authorizing Vendor or Contractor to use or display County's Intellectual Property. The County has the right to redact the County Logo displayed on any submission.

SOVEREIGN IMMUNITY

County expressly retains all rights, benefits and immunities of sovereign immunity in accordance with Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. Nothing will be deemed as a waiver of immunity or the limitations of liability of County beyond any statutory limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability. Nothing will inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing any claim against County, which would otherwise be barred under the law.

COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL STANDARDS

All items to be purchased under a Contract must be in accordance with all governmental standards to include, but not be limited to, those issued by the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), the National Institute of Occupational Safety Hazards (NIOSH), and the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA).

E-VERIFY

Upon award of a Contract, the Contractor shall utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system in accordance with the terms governing use of the system to confirm the employment eligibility of all new persons hired by the Contractor during the term of the Contract.

The Contractor shall include in all contracts with subcontractors performing work pursuant to any Contract, an express requirement that subcontractors utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system in accordance with the terms governing use of the system to confirm the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by subcontractors during the term of the subcontract.

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT (HIPPA)

The Contractor may be required to execute a Business Associate Agreement, pursuant to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (P.L. 104-191) (codified at 42 U.S.C. Section 1320d, *et. seq.*), and regulations contained in 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164.

If the Contractor obtains any information governed by 42 U.S.C. Section 290dd-2 and the regulations implemented by the Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration at 42 C.F.R. Part 2 (collectively referred to as the "SAMHSA regulations"), whether from the County or another source, while providing services to the County under the contract, the Contractor shall only use or disclose that information pursuant to the SAMHSA regulations.

The Contractor will also comply with any and all laws under the State of Florida governing the confidentiality of health information, including but not limited to records or other documents containing medical, mental health, or substance abuse information.

FORCE MAJEURE

The parties will exercise every reasonable effort to meet respective obligations under the Contract but will not be liable for delayed performance or nonperformance resulting from a force majeure. A party that becomes aware of a force majeure that will significantly delay performance will notify the other party promptly, within 15 calendar days, after if discovers the force majeure. If a force majeure occurs, the parties may execute a contract modification or change order to extend the performance schedule or make accommodations that are reasonable under the circumstances.

NO CLAIM FOR DAMAGES

No claim for damages or any claim other than for an extension of time may be made or asserted against the County because of any delays. No interruption, interference, inefficiency, suspension, or delay in the commencement or progress of the work will relieve the Contractor of duty to perform or give rise to any right to damages or additional compensation from the County. The Contractor's sole remedy will be the right to seek an extension to the Contract time. However, this provision will not preclude recovery of damages by the Contractor for hindrances or delays due solely to fraud, bad faith, or active interference on the part of the County.

CERTIFICATION REGARDING SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES

The Contractor hereby certifies that, pursuant to Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, it is not listed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel and is not participating in a boycott of Israel. The Contractor understands that pursuant to Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the submission of a false certification may subject it to civil penalties, attorneys' fees, and costs. The Contractor further understands that any contract with the County for goods or services may be terminated at the option of the County if the Contractor is found to have submitted a false certification or has been listed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel list or is participating in a boycott of Israel.

For purchases of \$1 million or more:

By submitting a response to any solicitation, the Contractor hereby certifies that, pursuant to Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, it is not listed on the Scrutinized Companies with activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List, or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List, is not listed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel and is not participating in a boycott of Israel, and is not engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. The Contractor understands that pursuant to Section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the submission of a false certification may subject it to civil penalties, attorneys' fees, and costs. The Contractor further understands that any contract with the County for goods or services of \$1 million or more may be terminated at the option of the County if the Contractor is found to have submitted a false certification or has been listed on the Scrutinized Companies with activities in Sudan List, is listed on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel list or is participating in a boycott of Israel, or is engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria.

ANTI-TRAFFICKING RELATED ACTIVITIES

The U.S. Government has adopted a policy prohibiting trafficking in persons including the traffickingrelated activities listed below. These prohibitions specifically apply to come federally funded contracts and prohibit contractors, contractor employees, and their agents from:

A. Engaging in severe forms of trafficking in persons during the period of performance of the contract;

- B. Procuring commercial sex acts during the period of performance of the contract;
- C. Using forced labor in the performance of the contract;
- D. Destroying, concealing, confiscating, or otherwise denying access by an employee to the employee's identity or immigration documents, such as passports or drivers' licenses, regardless of issuing authority;
- E. Using misleading or fraudulent practices during the recruitment of employees;
- F. Charging employees or potential employees recruitment fees;
- G. Failing to provide return transportation or paying for the cost of return transportation upon the end of employment for certain employees;
- H. Providing or arrange housing that fails to meet the host country housing and safety standards; or
- I. Failing to provide an employment contract, recruitment agreement, or other required work documents in writing, as required by law or contract.

NOTICES

All notices given by one party to the other party under a contract must be delivered to the receiving party's address set forth on the Contract either by hand, qualified courier, or e-mail and will be deemed received the day after it is transmitted. For County, it must be addressed to the Office of Procurement Services, Post Office Box 7800, 315 West Main Street, Suite 441, Tavares, Florida, 32778 or emailed to <u>purchasing@lakecountyfl.gov</u>.

[The remainder of this page intentionally left blank]

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INVOICES
LICENSES AND PERMITS
CONDITIONS
RENTAL
SUBCONTRACTOR
COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES
AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS
CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL
SAFETY7
FACILITIES PROVISIONS
SERVICE MATERIALS AND STORAGE
TIME FOR COMPLETION AND EXTENSIONS
CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF SERVICES
SALES TAX RECOVERY PROGRAM
CLAIMS AND DISPUTES
ACCEPTANCE OF THE WORK AND FINAL PAYMENT
FINAL INSPECTION
MAINTENANCE OF WORK
FINAL ACCEPTANCE
WAIVER OF CLAIMS
TERMINATION OF CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES
RECOVERY RIGHTS SUBSEQUENT TO FINAL PAYMENT 15
WARRANTIES
SANITATION
SUBMITTALS AND EQUAL PRODUCTS
FEES
RETURN OF MATERIALS
RETAINING OTHER CONTRACTORS
ACCURACY
BUSINESS HOURS OF OPERATION
PROTECTION OF PROPERTY
RISK OF LOSS/ACCIDENT NOTIFICATION

INVOICES

CONTRACTOR shall submit an original invoice to COUNTY after work has been completed via email (FacilitiesInvoices@LakeCountyFL.gov). Invoice submission shall not exceed ten (10) calendar days beyond the date the work was completed. Under no circumstances shall the invoices be submitted to COUNTY in advance of the delivery and acceptance of the work. All invoices shall be accompanied by the PDF documentation including but not limited to service tickets, suppliers' invoices, purchase orders, time sheets, approved proposals, and any other pertinent backup documentation in COUNTY's discretion. COUNTY will make payment on all undisputed invoices in accordance with the Florida Prompt Payment Act, Part VII, Chapter 218, Florida Statutes.

Work proposals shall be based on either time and material rates, or lump sum rate based as indicated in Exhibit A – Scope of Work. When time and material rates are specified in a contract rather than a lump sum the pricing section shall include the hours of labor, labor rate (based on the bid price), and total cost for the hours worked. CONTRACTOR shall be allowed to charge a minimum of one (1) hour of labor time whether or not the technician is on site for the entire first hour. Time after the first hour shall be calculated into fifteen (15) minutes increments.

The invoice shall be itemized to show the price of the part to CONTRACTOR, the percentage of markup, the total percentage markup cost, and the total of the part.

A. Work \$25,000 and Under: COUNTY will provide a lump sum payment when all work tasks are completed by CONTRACTOR and approved by COUNTY Project Manager. For COUNTY to provide payment, CONTRACTOR will submit a documented invoice that provides the basic information set forth herein.

B. Work Greater than \$25,000: CONTRACTOR may receive periodic payments on a 30-day interval for Work tasks completed during that period by CONTRACTOR and approved by COUNTY Project Manager. Retention of funds will be held in accordance with Florida Prompt Payment Act. In order for COUNTY to provide payment, CONTRACTOR will submit a documented invoice that provides the basic information set forth in this Section.

LICENSES AND PERMITS

CONTRACTOR will be solely responsible for obtaining all necessary approvals and permits to complete the Work. When time and material rates are used, CONTRACTOR shall be allowed to invoice for actual permit cost plus 15% markup. CONTRACTOR will remain appropriately licensed throughout the course of the Work. Failure to maintain all required licenses will entitle COUNTY to terminate this Agreement.

CONDITIONS

CONTRACTOR acknowledges that it has sufficient understanding of the nature and conditions of the work, including but not limited to, those bearing upon transportation, disposal, handling and storage of materials, availability of water, electric power, and roads, uncertainties of weather, physical conditions, character of equipment and facilities, quality and quantity of surface and subsurface materials, obstacles, or conditions of the site. Any failure by CONTRACTOR to acquaint itself with any aspect of the work or with any of the applicable conditions will not relieve CONTRACTOR from responsibility for adequately evaluating the difficulty or cost of successfully performing the work required, nor will it be considered a basis for any claim for additional time or compensation.

RENTAL

Should CONTRACTOR need to rent equipment to complete the assigned work, prior approval from the Project Manager shall be required. The cost of the rental shall be indicated on the estimate and the invoice. CONTRACTOR shall be allowed to assess a percentage of up to fifteen percent (15%) over the cost of the rental. A copy of the rental invoice to CONTRACTOR shall accompany the invoice being submitted to COUNTY. There will be no allowance for rental if it is reasonably ascertained that the equipment is needed to complete the work as outlined in the scope of work and was not included in the original estimate.

SUBCONTRACTOR

When time and material rates are specified in a contract rather than a lump sum and CONTRACTOR uses a subcontractor to complete the assigned work, the cost of the subcontractor shall be indicated on the estimate and the invoice. CONTRACTOR shall be allowed to assess a percentage of up to fifteen percent (15%) over the cost of the subcontractor. A copy of the subcontractor invoice to CONTRACTOR shall accompany the invoice submitted to COUNTY. Within five (5) calendar days after award of any subcontract, CONTRACTOR shall deliver to COUNTY a statement setting forth the name and address of the subcontractor, a summary of the work subcontracted and a copy of the subcontract.

COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES

A. Project Manager: COUNTY will designate a COUNTY staff member to act as COUNTY Project Manager. It is agreed to by the parties that COUNTY Project Manager will decide all questions, difficulties, or disputes, of whatever nature, which may arise relative to the interpretation of the plans, construction, prosecution, and fulfillment of the Scope of Services, and about the character, quality, amount, and value of any work done, and materials furnished, under or by reason of this Agreement. COUNTY Project Manager may appoint representatives as desired that will be authorized to inspect all work done and all materials furnished.

B. COUNTY will pay in accordance with the provisions set forth in this Agreement. COUNTY retains the right to inspect all work to verify compliance with the agreement documents. Such inspection may extend to all or any part of the work and to the manufacture, preparation, or fabrication of the materials to be used.

AGREEMENT DOCUMENTS

A. Definitions: For purposes of this Agreement, the term "agreement documents" includes all bid documents, drawings, the Scope of Services, attachments to this Agreement, and provisions within this Agreement, along with any change orders or amendments to this Agreement. It is the intent of the agreement documents to describe a functionally complete Service which defines the scope of work. Any work, materials, or equipment that may reasonably be inferred from the agreement documents as being required to produce the intended result will be supplied whether or not specifically called for. When words which have a well-known technical or trade meaning are used to describe work, material or equipment, such words will be interpreted in accordance with that meaning. Reference to standard specifications, manuals, or codes of any technical society, organization, or association or to the laws or regulations of any governmental authority having jurisdiction, whether such reference be specified or by implication, will mean the latest standard specification, manual, code, law or regulation in effect at the time the work performed, unless specifically stated otherwise herein.

B. Agreement Documents: The agreement documents and all referenced standards cited therein are essential parts of the agreement requirements. A requirement occurring in one is binding as though occurring in all. Drawings and specifications are intended to agree and be mutually complete. Any item not contained within the drawings, but contained in the specifications, or vice-versa, will be provided or executed as shown in either the drawing or specification at no extra costs to COUNTY. Should anything not included in either the drawing or the specifications be necessary for the proper construction or operation as herein specified, or should any error or disagreement between the specifications and drawings exist or appear to exist, CONTRACTOR will not derive unjust benefit thereby, or use such disagreement counter to the best interests of COUNTY. CONTRACTOR will immediately notify COUNTY Project Manager of any discrepancy and await the Project Manager's direction before proceeding with the work in question.

C. Completion of the Scope of Services: CONTRACTOR will give the work the attention necessary to assure the scheduled progress and will cooperate with COUNTY and with other contractors on the job site. All work will be done in accordance with the agreement documents. When not specifically identified in the technical specifications, such materials and equipment will be of a suitable type and grade for the purpose. All material, workmanship, and equipment will be subject to the inspection and approval of COUNTY.

D. Errors and Omissions: CONTRACTOR will not take advantage of any apparent error or omission in the agreement documents. If any error or omission appears in the agreement documents, CONTRACTOR will immediately notify COUNTY in writing of such errors or omissions. In the event CONTRACTOR knows or should have known of any error or omission and failed to provide such notification, CONTRACTOR will be deemed to have waived any claim for increased time or compensation CONTRACTOR may have had and CONTRACTOR will be responsible for the results and the costs of rectifying any such error or omission.

CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL

A. Personnel: CONTRACTOR will assure that all personnel are competent, careful, and reliable. All personnel must have sufficient skill and experience to perform their assigned task properly and satisfactorily, to operate any equipment involved, and will make do and proper effort to execute the work in the manner prescribed in the agreement documents. When COUNTY determines that any person is incompetent, unfaithful, intemperate, disorderly, or insubordinate, such person will be immediately discharged and will not again be employed without the written consent of COUNTY. Should CONTRACTOR fail to remove such person or persons, COUNTY may withhold all payments which are or may become due or may suspend the work with approval of COUNTY until such orders are complied with. No alcoholic beverages or drugs are permitted on any COUNTY properties. Evidence of alcoholic beverages or drug use by an individual will result in immediate termination from the job site.

B. E-Verify: CONTRACTOR will utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by CONTRACTOR during the term of this agreement; and will expressly require any contractor and subcontractors performing work or providing services pursuant to this agreement to likewise utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the subcontractor during the agreement term.

C. Employment: CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that, in accordance with Section 255.099, Florida Statutes, if assigned to CONTRACTOR is being supported in whole or in part by State funding CONTRACTOR will give preference to the employment of state residents in the performance of the work if state residents have substantially equal qualifications to those of non-

residents. If CONTRACTOR is required to employ state residents, CONTRACTOR will contact the Department of Economic Opportunity to post the employment needs in the State's job bank system. However, in work involving the expenditure of federal aid funds, this section may not be enforced in such a manner that would conflict with or be contrary to federal law prescribing a labor preference to honorably discharged soldiers, sailors, or marines, or prohibiting as unlawful any other preference or discrimination among the citizens of the United States.

D. Superintendent: CONTRACTOR will have at the site as its agent a competent superintendent capable and thoroughly experienced in the type of work being performed, who will receive instructions from COUNTY. The superintendent will supervise all trades, direct all Service activities, establish, and maintain installation schedules, and provide COUNTY Project Manager with progress reports as requested. The superintendent will have full authority to execute the orders or directions of COUNTY, and if applicable to supply promptly any materials, tools, equipment, labor, and incidentals which may be required. Such superintendent will be furnished regardless of the amount of work sublet. CONTRACTOR'S superintendent will speak, write, and understand English and will be on the job site during all working hours.

E. Dress Code: CONTRACTOR will maintain a dress code for its employees with a minimum of shirts, pants, and work shoes/boots, in decent condition, always while the work is being performed. In the event COUNTY determines ID badges are necessary, COUNTY will provide CONTRACTOR with ID badges and CONTRACTOR agrees to enforce that its employees, whether employed by CONTRACTOR or a subcontractor, wear such ID badge while working on site.

F. Employee Documentation: If required by COUNTY for a Service, CONTRACTOR will provide COUNTY Project Manager with all requested documentation for all personnel, subcontractors, and representatives of CONTRACTOR that will be utilized. Documentation will be provided within five working days of request and will be submitted electronically in PDF format. This information will also be provided when new personnel, subcontractors, and representatives of CONTRACTOR are hired at any time during the agreement period. The information supplied will be used to run background checks and to provide identification badging, proximity cards, and keys. All required documentation will be supplied in one PDF attachment that will be titled with the Company's name, the person's name, and the person's birthdate.

Example: ACME Plumbing - John H. Smith - 10/10/96. The documentation will include Full name, Address, Email address, Telephone number, copy of driver's license/state of Florida identification card/valid passport/valid work visa, current color photo (head shot) taken with a plain background, building name(s) and address(s) of the facilities where the individual will be working, and any additional information that may be requested by the Lake COUNTY Sheriff's Office.

G. Criminal Justice Information Services (CJIS): When advised by COUNTY Project Manager, CONTRACTOR'S personnel, subcontractors, and representatives will be required to complete an online training class that includes testing in order to have access to some secure areas of COUNTY facilities. Finger printing may also be required and will be performed by the Lake COUNTY Sheriff's Office at no expense to CONTRACTOR.

H. Background Check: Background checks may be performed by the Lake COUNTY Sheriff's Office for projects or services being done at the Lake COUNTY Courthouse at no expense to CONTRACTOR. On sites other than the Lake COUNTY Courthouse, all personnel, subcontractors, and representatives of CONTRACTOR will be required to submit to the Florida Department of Law Enforcement (1-850-410-8109) for a "Certified Background Check." CONTRACTOR will be responsible for all costs associated with the "Certified Background v.1.11.23 Page 5 of 19

Check." A copy of the "Certified Background Check" will be supplied to COUNTY Project Manager prior to any work starting. COUNTY Project Manager will notify CONTRACTOR electronically of approved and denied background checks. Reasons for denials will not be provided.

I. Identification Badging / Proximity Cards / Keys: CONTRACTOR'S personnel, subcontractors, and representatives that are approved to work in restricted areas will receive an identification badge which may also act as a proximity card. All approved personnel, subcontractors, and representatives of CONTRACTOR will be issued identification badge(s) and will be required to wear them at all times while on COUNTY property. Personnel, subcontractors, and representatives of CONTRACTOR will not be allowed to work on COUNTY property prior to being given approval by the Office of Facilities Management and the assignment of a CONTRACTOR identification badge. For facilities that do not have proximity card readers, keys may be issued to or approved personnel, subcontractors, and representatives of CONTRACTOR. The Office of Facilities Management will notify CONTRACTOR that identification badges, proximity cards, or keys are ready for pickup, and will have CONTRACTOR complete a release form(s) and then distribute them to CONTRACTOR for disbursement to their personnel, subcontractors, and representatives.

J. Lost/Stolen/Damaged Identification Badges / Proximity Cards / Keys: Should an identification badge, proximity card or key is lost, stolen, or damaged, CONTRACTOR will immediately notify COUNTY Project Manager. Personnel, subcontractors, and representatives of CONTRACTOR will be temporarily substituted by CONTRACTOR until a new identification badge/proximity card is provided. CONTRACTOR will be assessed a \$25.00 fee for each lost, stolen, or damaged card or key. All fees due will be deducted from CONTRACTOR'S next invoice.

K. Reports: CONTRACTOR will provide an initial report within 30 business days of the start date and then an annual report due each anniversary of the initial report date for all employees currently being utilized for Projects or Services for COUNTY. All additions or changes will be highlighted in yellow. Reports will be provided for the duration. The report will be delivered electronically in PDF format to the Lake COUNTY Sheriff's Office Representative, the Facilities Maintenance Division Supervisor, and COUNTY Project Manager. Reports will include the following information for each employee: individual's name, birthdate, and driver's license number; identification badge/proximity card number, all facilities where the employee works, all facilities accessible by proximity card or key, the date the identification badge/proximity card was issued, dates of subsequently issued identification badges/proximity cards due to loss, theft, or damage; and the date that the individual left employment of CONTRACTOR and the date the identification badge/proximity card was returned.

L. Leave Reporting and Project Completion: CONTRACTOR will immediately contact COUNTY Project Manager upon the dismissal or permanent leave of any personnel, subcontractors, and representatives of CONTRACTOR that are utilized for Service for COUNTY. CONTRACTOR will contact COUNTY Project Manager to arrange to drop off identification badge(s), proximity card(s), and key(s) of a dismissed worker(s) within three business days of dismissal or leave. At completion, CONTRACTOR will, within three business days, arrange to meet with the Facilities Maintenance Division Manager to return all identification badges, proximity cards, and keys.

M. Subcontractors:

CONTRACTOR will be responsible to COUNTY for the acts and omissions of CONTRACTOR'S subcontractors and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by them.

All subcontractors, for as long as the subcontractor is working on the job site, will have at least one supervisor/foreman on the job site that will speak and understand English.

CONTRACTOR will cause its subcontractors and suppliers to comply with the schedule and applicable sub-schedules.

CONTRACTOR will include with the final invoice a completed CONTRACTOR'S FINAL PAYMENT AFFIDAVIT, which will be provided by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR. A copy of the Affidavit may be provided by request to COUNTY.

N. Emergency Contact: Dependent on COUNTY needs, CONTRACTOR will have a responsible person available at, or reasonably nearby, on a 24-hour basis, seven days a week, who may be contacted in emergencies and in cases where immediate action must be taken to handle any problem that might arise. CONTRACTOR will submit to COUNTY Project Manager, the phone numbers and names of personnel designated to be contacted in cases of emergencies. This list will contain the name of their supervisors responsible for work pertaining to this Agreement.

O. Notification of Emergency: In the event of an emergency affecting the safety or protection of persons, or the work or property at the site or adjacent thereto, CONTRACTOR, without special instruction or authorization from COUNTY, is obligated to act to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. CONTRACTOR will contact COUNTY as soon as possible by telephone and with written notice as soon as feasible thereafter, but no later than 24 hours after the occurrence of the emergency, if CONTRACTOR believes that any significant changes in the work or variations from the agreement documents has occurred. If COUNTY determines that a change in the agreement document the consequences of the changes or variations. If CONTRACTOR fails to provide written notice within the 24-hour limitation noted above, CONTRACTOR will be deemed to have waived any right it otherwise may have had to seek an adjustment to the agreed amount or an extension to the agreed time.

SAFETY

A. CONTRACTOR will be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the work and for complying with all requirements of the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) and any other industry, federal, state, or local government standards, including the National Institute of Occupational Safety Hazards (NIOSH), and the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA). CONTRACTOR will take all necessary precautions for the safety of, and will provide the necessary protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to, persons or property. CONTRACTOR will be aware that while working for COUNTY, representatives from agencies such as OSHA are invitees and need not have warrants or permission to enter the work site. Any fines levied by the above-mentioned authorities for failure to comply with these requirements will be borne solely by CONTRACTOR.

B. CONTRACTOR certifies that all material, equipment, etc. to be used in an individual Service meets all Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) requirements. CONTRACTOR certifies that if any of the material, equipment, etc. is found to be deficient in any OSHA requirement in effect on the date of delivery, all costs necessary to bring the material, equipment, etc. into compliance with the requirements will be borne by CONTRACTOR. All standard equipment, work operations, safety equipment, personal protective equipment, and lighting required or mandated by State, Federal, OSHA, or Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) regulations must be provided and used by CONTRACTOR and its employees.

C. All safety devices installed by the manufacturer on equipment utilized by CONTRACTOR on the jobsite will be in place and in proper working order at all times. If COUNTY determines that the equipment is deficient in safety devices, CONTRACTOR will be notified immediately. CONTRACTOR will immediately repair or remove the equipment from service until the deficiency is corrected to the satisfaction of COUNTY.

D. COUNTY may periodically monitor the work site for safety. Should there be safety or health violations, COUNTY will have the authority, but not the duty, to require CONTRACTOR to correct the violation in an expeditious manner. If there is any situation that is deemed unsafe by COUNTY, work will be shut down immediately upon notice and will not resume until the unsafe condition has been remedied.

E. Should the work site be in a hazardous area, COUNTY will take reasonable actions to furnish CONTRACTOR with information concerning hazards such as the types or the identification of known toxic material, machine hazards, Safety Data Sheets (SDS), or any other information that would assist CONTRACTOR in the planning of a safe work site.

F. CONTRACTOR retains the ultimate responsibility to ensure all work is performed in a manner consistent with all applicable safety standards and directives.

G. CONTRACTOR will erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and agreement performance, safeguards for safety and protection such as barricades, danger signs, a construction fence, and other warnings against hazardous conditions.

H. CONTRACTOR will be responsible for the removal of all surplus material and debris from the site at the end of each workday. All costs associated with clean-up and debris removal will be included in the lump sum price stated elsewhere herein. CONTRACTOR will leave the site clean and neat. All work must be cleaned up prior to the next day of business. The specified work will not interfere with the regular operating hours of COUNTY.

I. CONTRACTOR must have sufficient and Service site appropriate cleaning supplies and equipment, including vacuum cleaners, on-site for clean-up. CONTRACTOR will not use COUNTY cleaning supplies or equipment. Upon final completion, CONTRACTOR will thoroughly clean-up all areas where work has been involved as mutually agreed with COUNTY Project Manager. If at any time CONTRACTOR fails to clean up the work area to acceptable levels COUNTY will retain outside cleaning services and the actual costs for this service will be deducted from CONTRACTOR'S final payment with the minimum cost of \$50.00 to offset COUNTY time for securing services to properly clean and inspect the site.

J. CONTRACTOR will confine all equipment, materials and operations to the site and areas identified in the agreement documents. CONTRACTOR will assume all responsibility for any damage to any such area resulting from the performance of the work.

K. CONTRACTOR is responsible for notifying COUNTY of any hazardous materials used on the work site and providing COUNTY a copy of the Safety Data Sheets (SDS). Any spillage of hazardous chemicals or wastes by CONTRACTOR will be reported immediately to COUNTY and cleaned up in accordance with all State and Federal Regulations. The cost of cleanup of any spillage of hazardous chemicals or wastes caused by CONTRACTOR will be the sole responsibility of CONTRACTOR and COUNTY will share no responsibility of these costs. A copy of the complete report showing compliance with local, state, and federal agencies will be given to COUNTY. If any hazardous chemicals or conditions are discovered during the normal operation, it is the responsibility of CONTRACTOR to immediately contact COUNTY with a description and location of the condition. The SDS must meet the requirements of 29 C.F.R. 1910.1200(g), and include the following information:

- i. Section 1: Identification
- ii. Section 2: Hazard(s) identification;
- iii. Section 3: Composition/information on ingredients;
- iv. Section 4: First-aid measures;
- v. Section 5: Fire-fighting measures;
- vi. Section 6: Accidental release measures;
- vii. Section 7: Handling and storage;
- viii. Section 8: Exposure controls / personal protection;
- ix. Section 9: Physical and chemical properties;
- x. Section 10: Stability and reactivity;
- xi. Section 11: Toxicological information;
- xii. Section 12: Ecological information;
- xiii. Section 13: Disposal considerations;
- xiv. Section 14: Transport information;
- xv. Section 15: Regulatory information; and
- xvi. Section 16: Other information, including date of preparation or last revision. .

FACILITIES PROVISIONS

A. Underground Utilities: Any required digging or subsurface work will be done in accordance with Chapter 556, Florida Statutes. It will be the responsibility of CONTRACTOR to have all underground utilities located before any work begins (Sunshine State One Call 1-800-432-4770). The repairs of any damaged underground utilities because of the work being performed by CONTRACTOR will be the responsibility of CONTRACTOR. The proper utility company will be contacted immediately to expedite the repairs if damage has occurred. CONTRACTOR will notify COUNTY and provide a written explanation of the incident within two days of the damage to any underground utilities.

- B. General Inspection Requirements:
- i. CONTRACTOR will furnish COUNTY with every reasonable accommodation for finding out whether the work performed, and materials used are in accordance with the requirements and intent of the agreement documents. If COUNTY so requests, CONTRACTOR will, at any time before final acceptance of the work, remove or uncover such portions of the finished work as may be directed. After examination, CONTRACTOR will restore the uncovered portions of the work to the standard required by the specifications. Should the work so exposed or examined prove unacceptable to COUNTY, the uncovering or removal, and the replacing of the covering or making good of the parts removed, will be at CONTRACTOR'S expense. However, should the work exposed or examined prove acceptable in the opinion of COUNTY, the uncovering or removing and the replacing or the covering or making good of the parts removed, will be paid for as unforeseen work.
- ii. If COUNTY fails to reject defective work or materials, whether from lack of discovery of such defect or for any other reason, such initial failure to reject will in no way prevent COUNTY'S later rejection when such defect is discovered, nor obligate COUNTY to final acceptance or payment, and CONTRACTOR will make no claim for losses suffered due to any necessary removals or repairs of such defects.
- iii. If, during or prior to construction operations, COUNTY rejects any portion of the work on the grounds that the work or materials are defective, COUNTY will give CONTRACTOR notice of the defect, which notice may be confirmed in writing. CONTRACTOR will then have seven calendar days from the date the notice is given to correct the defective condition. If

CONTRACTOR fails to correct the deficiency within the seven calendar days, COUNTY may take any action necessary, including correcting the deficient work utilizing another contractor, returning any non-compliant goods to CONTRACTOR at CONTRACTOR expense or terminating this Agreement. CONTRACTOR will not assess any additional charges for any conforming action taken by COUNTY. COUNTY will not be responsible to pay for any product or service that does not conform to the agreement documents.

- iv. Should CONTRACTOR fail to remove and renew any defective materials used or work performed, or to make any necessary corrections in an acceptable manner and in accordance with the agreement documents, within the time indicated in writing, COUNTY may direct CONTRACTOR to correct the unacceptable or defective materials or work at CONTRACTOR'S expense. Any expense incurred by COUNTY, whether direct, indirect, or consequential, in making said repairs, removals, or renewals will be paid for out of any monies due or which may become due to CONTRACTOR. A change order will be issued, incorporating the necessary revisions to the agreement documents, including an appropriate decrease to the agreement amount. Such costs will include, but not be limited to, costs of repair and replacement of work destroyed or damaged by correction, removal or replacement of CONTRACTOR'S defective work and additional compensation due COUNTY. CONTRACTOR will not be allowed an extension of the term of this Agreement because of any delay in performance attributable to the exercise by COUNTY of COUNTY'S rights and remedies hereunder.
- v. If CONTRACTOR fails to honor the change order, COUNTY may terminate this Agreement. In the event COUNTY Project Manager finds the materials or the finished product in which the materials are used and not within reasonably close conformity to the specifications, COUNTY Project Manager will then make a determination if the work will be accepted and remain in place. In this event, COUNTY Project Manager will document the basis of acceptance by a change order that will provide for an appropriate deduction as needed in the agreement price for such work or materials necessary to conform to the determination based on COUNTY Project Manager's professional judgment.
- vi. When all or a portion of the cost of Services is to be paid by federal, state or another governmental agency, the work will be subject to such inspection by federal, state, or other governmental agency representative, but such inspections will not make the government or agency a party to this agreement.

SERVICE MATERIALS AND STORAGE

A. Unless otherwise specified within the agreement documents, all materials to be used to complete work, except where recycled content is specifically requested, will be new, unused, of recent manufacture, and suitable for its intended purpose. All goods will be assembled, serviced, and ready for operation when delivered. In the event any of the materials supplied by CONTRACTOR are found to be defective or do not conform to specifications: (1) the materials may be returned to CONTRACTOR at CONTRACTOR'S expense and this Agreement may be terminated, or (2) COUNTY may require CONTRACTOR to replace the materials at CONTRACTOR'S expense.

B. Materials will be placed to permit easy access for proper inspection and identification of each shipment. Any material which has deteriorated, become damaged, or is otherwise unfit for use, as determined by COUNTY, will not be used in the work, and will be removed from the site by CONTRACTOR at CONTRACTOR'S expense. Until incorporated into the work, materials will be the sole responsibility of CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR will not be paid for such

materials until incorporated into the work. If any chemicals, materials, or products containing toxic substances are to be used at any time, CONTRACTOR will furnish a Safety Data Sheet to COUNTY prior to commencing such use.

C. When not specifically identified in the technical specifications, such materials and equipment will be of a suitable type and grade for the purpose.

D. All unusable materials and debris will be removed from the premises at the end of each workday and disposed of in an appropriate manner.

TIME FOR COMPLETION AND EXTENSIONS

A. A written notice to proceed or a Purchase Order with instruction is required for CONTRACTOR to schedule or begin work. CONTRACTOR will diligently pursue the completion of the work and coordinate the work being done by its subcontractors and material suppliers, as well as coordinate CONTRACTOR'S work with the work of other contractors so that CONTRACTOR'S work or the work of others will not be delayed or impaired. CONTRACTOR will be solely responsible for all means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures, as well as coordination of all portions of the work under the agreement documents.

B. Should CONTRACTOR be obstructed or delayed in the completion of the work because of unforeseeable causes beyond the control of CONTRACTOR, and not due to CONTRACTOR'S fault or neglect, CONTRACTOR will notify COUNTY in writing within 24 hours after the commencement of such delay, stating the cause or causes thereof, or be deemed to have waived any right which CONTRACTOR may have had to request a time extension.

C. If CONTRACTOR complies with the 24-hour notice requirement, COUNTY will ascertain the facts and the extent of the delay being claimed and recommend an extension to the agreement time when, in COUNTY'S sole judgment, the findings of fact justify such an extension. CONTRACTOR will cooperate with COUNTY'S investigation of the delays by providing any schedules, correspondence or other data that may be required to complete the findings of fact. Extensions to the agreement time may be granted only for those delays which impact CONTRACTOR'S construction schedule. Extensions of agreement time, if approved by COUNTY, must be authorized by written change order.

CHANGES IN THE SCOPE OF SERVICES

A. COUNTY may, by written change order, in accordance with COUNTY Purchasing Policy and Procedures, modify the Scope of Services. For changes requested by CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR will prepare and submit change order requests for COUNTY approval. Each change order will include time and monetary impacts of the change, whether the change order is considered alone or with all other changes. Both COUNTY and CONTRACTOR will execute the change order. The value of such extra work or change will be determined by the agreement unit values if applicable unit values are set forth in this Agreement. The amount of the change will be computed from such values and added to or deducted from the agreement price.

B. If COUNTY and CONTRACTOR are unable to agree on the change order for a requested change, CONTRACTOR agrees to promptly perform the change as directed in writing by COUNTY. If CONTRACTOR disagrees with COUNTY'S adjustment determination, CONTRACTOR must make a claim pursuant to the Claims and Disputes section herein, or else be deemed to have waived any claim on this matter CONTRACTOR might have otherwise had. For work not contemplated by the original agreement, the amount of an increase will be limited to CONTRACTOR'S reasonable direct labor and material costs and reasonable actual equipment

costs as a result of the change (including allowance for labor burden costs) plus a maximum ten percent (10%) markup for all overhead and profit, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by COUNTY. In such case, CONTRACTOR will keep and present to COUNTY an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting data.

C. COUNTY will not be liable to CONTRACTOR for any increased compensation in the absence of a written change order executed in accordance with COUNTY policy. The payment authorized by such a change order will represent full and complete compensation to CONTRACTOR for labor, materials, incidental expenses, overhead, profit, costs, and time associated with the work authorized by such change order.

D. Execution by CONTRACTOR of a properly authorized change order will be considered a waiver of all claims or requests for additional time or compensation for any activities prior to the time of execution related to items included in the change order.

E. Upon receipt of an approved change order, changes in the Scope of Services will be promptly performed. All changes in work will be performed under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

F. Change orders will not be issued for incidental items or tasks that should have been reasonably construed to be part of the project by CONTRACTOR.

SALES TAX RECOVERY PROGRAM

In accordance with Section 212.08(6), Florida Statutes, and Rule 12A-1.094, Florida Administrative Code, COUNTY is tax exempt when it purchases tangible personal property for use in public works projects, subject to certain restrictions. In the event this project is declared a sales tax recovery project by COUNTY, the following procedures will apply:

A. COUNTY, through the Office of Facilities Management, shall determine whether COUNTY will directly purchase certain materials required. CONTRACTOR shall prepare a list of proposed items that may be desirable for COUNTY direct purchasing. Proposed items will be items that are purchased in a single order from a single vendor with a value greater than \$10,000. Upon reviewing this list, COUNTY will determine whether it will directly purchase certain materials. COUNTY shall notify CONTRACTOR in writing of the specific materials which are intended to be purchased.

B. Within ten (10) calendar days from receipt of the written notice described above, CONTRACTOR shall advise COUNTY in writing of: (a) the date upon which the materials must be on-site according to the Construction Schedule approved at that time, (b) the date that CONTRACTOR directs that COUNTY place the order for the described materials, (c) the location to which the materials are to be delivered, and (d) any other particular details of the order which CONTRACTOR requests that COUNTY include in the Purchase Order to the vendor.

C. COUNTY may, but is not required to, provide CONTRACTOR with the proposed Purchase Order for the materials. In that case, CONTRACTOR shall review the Purchase Order for compliance with the Agreement, including, without limitation, the plans, specifications, and Construction Schedule. Within the earlier of five (5) calendar days from the receipt of the proposed Purchase Order or the day prior to the date provided by CONTRACTOR as defined hereinabove, CONTRACTOR shall provide COUNTY with written approval of the Purchase Order or shall provide written revisions to the Purchase Order, in order that the materials and the delivery will comply with the Agreement Documents, including, without limitation, the plans, specifications and Construction Schedule.

D. COUNTY, through the Office of Facilities Management, will place the Order for the materials with the vendor.

E. COUNTY will take title to those materials directly from the vendor and will bear the risk of loss or damage to the materials which are delivered by the vendor through the time that the materials are delivered to the location designated by CONTRACTOR. After the materials are delivered to the location designated by CONTRACTOR, CONTRACTOR will have full responsibility for storage, protection, risk-of-loss, and installation pursuant to the Agreement, including, without limitation, the plans, specifications, and Construction Schedule.

F. The vendor will invoice COUNTY directly for the materials purchased from the vendor. COUNTY shall pay the invoices for the materials directly, presenting its sales tax exemption certificate to each vendor at the time of payment.

With respect to the materials specifically designated by this Section, CONTRACTOR will be relieved only of its responsibilities to place the order for the subject materials, to pay for the materials and to insure the materials against loss through the date that they are delivered to the location designated by CONTRACTOR. Nothing in this Agreement will revise or modify CONTRACTOR'S responsibilities set forth in this Agreement, including, without limitation, the responsibility to schedule the timely ordering and delivery of the materials purchased, the management of the materials once delivered or the incorporation of the materials into the Work, as provided in the Agreement Documents, including, without limitation, the plans, specifications, and Construction Schedule.

THE PURPOSE OF THE SALES TAX RECOVERY PROGRAM IS TO ACHIEVE COST SAVINGS FOR COUNTY. THE COST OF ANY MATERIALS PURCHASED THROUGH THE SALES TAX RECOVERY PROGRAM WILL BE DEDUCTED FROM THE AGREEMENT AMOUNT. ALL SAVINGS REALIZED BY THE SALES TAX RECOVERY PROGRAM WILL INURE TO THE BENEFIT OF COUNTY.

COUNTY and CONTRACTOR shall execute a written change order described in this Agreement and approved in accordance with COUNTY policy and the Change Order will become a part of the Agreement Documents. CONTRACTOR'S fee will be calculated on the basis that CONTRACTOR, rather than COUNTY, procured the materials. Therefore, for purpose of calculating the fee, the total of subcontractor and supplier costs will include payments made by COUNTY under this program.

CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

A. Claims by CONTRACTOR will be made in writing to COUNTY within two business days after the commencement of the event giving rise to such claim or CONTRACTOR will be deemed to have waived the claim. All claims will be priced in accordance with the Section in this Agreement entitled "Changes in Work."

B. CONTRACTOR will proceed diligently with its performance as directed by COUNTY, regardless of any pending claim, action, suit, or administrative proceeding, unless otherwise agreed to by COUNTY in writing. COUNTY will continue to make payments on the undisputed portion of the agreement in accordance with the agreement documents during the pendency of any claim.

C. Claims by CONTRACTOR will be resolved in the following manner:

Upon receiving the claim and supporting data, COUNTY will within 15 calendar days respond to the claim in writing stating that the claim is either approved or denied. If denied, COUNTY will specify the grounds for denial. CONTRACTOR will then have 15 calendar days in which to

provide additional supporting documentation, or to notify COUNTY that the original claim stands as is.

If the claim is not resolved, COUNTY may, at its option, choose to submit the matter to mediation. A mediator will be mutually selected by the parties and each party will pay one-half (1/2) the expense of mediation. If COUNTY declines to mediate the dispute, CONTRACTOR may bring an action in a court of competent jurisdiction in and for Lake COUNTY, Florida.

Claims by COUNTY against CONTRACTOR will be made in writing to CONTRACTOR as soon as the event leading to the claim is discovered by COUNTY. CONTRACTOR will respond in writing within 15 calendar days of receipt of the claim. If the claim cannot be resolved, COUNTY will have the option to submit the matter to mediation as set forth in the preceding paragraph above.

Arbitration will not be considered as a means of dispute resolution.

No claim for damages or any claim other than for an extension of time will be made or asserted against COUNTY by reason of any delays. No interruption, interference, inefficiency, suspension or delay in the commencement or progress of the work will relieve CONTRACTOR of its duty to perform or give rise to any right to damages or additional compensation from COUNTY. CONTRACTOR expressly acknowledges and agrees that CONTRACTOR will receive no damages for delay. This provision will not preclude recovery or damages by CONTRACTOR for hindrances or delays due solely to fraud, bad faith, or active interference on the part of COUNTY. Otherwise, CONTRACTOR will be entitled to extensions of the agreement time as the sole and exclusive remedy for such resulting delay, in accordance with and to the extent specifically provided above.

ACCEPTANCE OF THE WORK AND FINAL PAYMENT

The work and services rendered under this Agreement will remain the property of CONTRACTOR and will not be deemed complete until a physical inspection and actual usage of the product(s) or service(s) is (are) accepted by COUNTY and will comply with the terms herein, in accord with the specifications and of the highest quality. Any goods or services purchased under this Agreement may be tested/inspected for compliance with the specifications listed.

FINAL INSPECTION

When all materials have been furnished, all work has been performed, and the construction contemplated by this Agreement has been satisfactorily completed, COUNTY will make the final inspection. The final inspection will be completed within five business days of receipt of notification from CONTRACTOR. COUNTY will notify CONTRACTOR, if necessary, of any deficiencies, and CONTRACTOR will correct all deficiencies before final acceptance and payment is made.

MAINTENANCE OF WORK

CONTRACTOR will maintain all work in as-new condition until the final inspection is completed and the work is accepted by COUNTY. All insurance will be maintained until final acceptance by COUNTY.

FINAL ACCEPTANCE

When work or any portion thereof, as designated by COUNTY, is ready for its intended use, COUNTY and any other invited parties will inspect to verify its completeness and develop a punch list of items needing completion or correction before final payment will be made. CONTRACTOR

will have 10 calendar days to correct all deficiencies. An \$80.00 re-inspection fee will be applied for the third inspection and any required re-inspection thereafter. COUNTY will have the right to exclude CONTRACTOR from those portions of the work designated as complete after the inspection; provided, however, that CONTRACTOR will have reasonable access for the time allotted by COUNTY to complete or correct items on the punch list.

When the work provided for under this Agreement has been completely performed by CONTRACTOR, and the final inspection has been made by COUNTY, a final invoice will be prepared by CONTRACTOR and submitted with Exhibit E-Final Payment Affidavit. The amount of this invoice, less any sums that may have been deducted or retained under the provisions of this Agreement, will be paid to CONTRACTOR in accordance with this Agreement, and after CONTRACTOR has agreed in writing to accept the balance due, as determined by COUNTY, as full settlement of the account under the agreement and of all claims in connection therewith. Occupancy by COUNTY alone does not constitute final acceptance.

WAIVER OF CLAIMS

CONTRACTOR'S acceptance of final payment will constitute a full waiver of any and all claims by CONTRACTOR against COUNTY arising out of the Agreement or otherwise related work, except those previously made in writing and identified by CONTRACTOR as unsettled at the time the final estimate is prepared. Neither the acceptance of the work nor payment by COUNTY will be deemed a waiver of COUNTY'S rights to enforce any continuing obligations of CONTRACTOR or to the recovery of damages for defective work not discovered by COUNTY at the time of final inspection.

TERMINATION OF CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES

This Agreement will be considered complete when all work has been completed and accepted by COUNTY and all warranty periods have expired. CONTRACTOR will then be released from further obligation except as set forth in this Agreement.

RECOVERY RIGHTS SUBSEQUENT TO FINAL PAYMENT

COUNTY reserves the right, should an error be discovered in the invoice, or should proof of defective work or materials used by or on the part of CONTRACTOR be discovered after the final payment has been made, to claim and recover from CONTRACTOR by process of law, such sums as may be sufficient to correct the error or make good the defects in the work and materials, including any fees or costs associated with the additional services of COUNTY.

WARRANTIES

A. All warranties will begin on the date of COUNTY'S acceptance which will be the date final payment is issued to CONTRACTOR and will last for a period of 12 months unless otherwise specified in the Scope of Services, plans or specifications. CONTRACTOR will obtain and assign to COUNTY all express warranties given to CONTRACTOR or any subcontractors by any material suppliers, equipment, or fixtures to be incorporated.

B. CONTRACTOR warrants to COUNTY that any materials and equipment furnished under the Agreement Documents will be new unless otherwise specified, and that all work will be of good quality, free from defects and in conformance with the Agreement Documents. CONTRACTOR warrants to COUNTY that all materials and equipment furnished under the Agreement Documents will be applied, installed, connected, erected, used, cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with the instructions of the applicable manufacturers, fabricators, suppliers, or processors except as

otherwise provided for the agreement documents. This warranty requirement will remain in force for the full period identified above, regardless of whether CONTRACTOR is still under agreement at the time of the defect. These warranties are in addition to those implied warranties to which COUNTY is entitled as a matter of law.

C. If sod is used as part of an individual Service, it will be warranted to be free of noxious and invasive weeds, disease, and insects. If pests or noxious weeds manifest themselves within 60 days of placement of the sod, CONTRACTOR will treat the affected areas. The process for treating these areas will be approved by COUNTY. If the sod does not meet any of the required specifications, CONTRACTOR will be responsible to replace it at no expense to COUNTY. It will be the responsibility of CONTRACTOR to ensure the sod is sufficiently established as described as specified in the Scope of Services, plans, or specifications. This will include watering the sod on a regular basis as needed to keep it alive until established. Established will be considered as being sufficiently rooted, as determined by COUNTY Project Manager, into the surface that it was installed. If the sod dies or does not become established CONTRACTOR will be responsible for the replacement at no cost to COUNTY.

D. CONTRACTOR will be responsible for promptly correcting any deficiency, at no cost to COUNTY, within five (5) calendar days after COUNTY notifies CONTRACTOR of such deficiency in writing. If CONTRACTOR fails to honor the warranty or fails to correct or replace the defective work or items within the period specified, COUNTY may, at its discretion, notify CONTRACTOR in writing that CONTRACTOR may be debarred as a COUNTY vendor, and become subject to contractual default if the corrections or replacements are not completed to the satisfaction of COUNTY within five calendar days of receipt of the notice. If CONTRACTOR fails to satisfy the warranty within the period specified in the notice, COUNTY may (a) place CONTRACTOR in default of its agreement and (b) procure the products or services from another source and charge CONTRACTOR for any additional costs that are incurred by COUNTY for this work or items, either through a credit memorandum or through invoicing.

E. Liquidated Damages: If the deficiencies have been noted and the remedies have not been completed within the contracted time, COUNTY may send out a notification notifying CONTRACTOR of an assessment of Liquidated Damages. COUNTY and CONTRACTOR recognize that, since time is of the essence for this Agreement, COUNTY will suffer financial loss if the work is not completed within the time specified. COUNTY will be entitled to assess Liquidated Damages, not a penalty, for each calendar day. Work will be deemed to be completed on the date the work is considered complete to the satisfaction of COUNTY. CONTRACTOR hereby expressly waives and relinquishes any right which it may have to seek to characterize the Liquidated Damages as a penalty. The parties agree that the Liquidated Damages sum represents a fair and reasonable estimate of COUNTY'S actual damages at the time of contracting if CONTRACTOR fails to complete the work in a timely manner. The Liquidated Damages will be as set forth in the following table:

Service/Project Amount	Daily Charge (Per Calendar Day)	
\$5,000 and under	\$25	
Over \$5,000 but less than \$10,000	\$65	
\$10,000 or more but less than \$20,000	\$91	
\$20,000 or more but less than \$30,000	\$121	
\$30,000 or more but less than \$40,000	\$166	
\$40,000 or more but less than \$50,000	\$228	
\$50,001 or more	\$250	

F. COUNTY will retain from the compensation to be paid to CONTRACTOR the above-described sum. If CONTRACTOR is in default for not completing work within the time specified, COUNTY may require CONTRACTOR to stop work on any other project or service to COUNTY until the work specified in this Agreement is complete and the Liquidated damages Sum is satisfied.

SANITATION

If work does not involve interior work, CONTRACTOR will be required to provide and maintain adequate sanitary conveniences for the use of persons employed. These conveniences will be always maintained without nuisance, and the use will be strictly enforced. The location of these conveniences will be subject to COUNTY Project Manager's approval. All such facilities will be installed and maintained by CONTRACTOR in accordance with applicable federal, state, and local laws.

SUBMITTALS AND EQUAL PRODUCTS

A. Submittals of products required hereunder, will be supplied to COUNTY by CONTRACTOR for pre-approval prior to the start of the work. These documents will be provided to COUNTY at least one week before the installation.

B. If a product or service requested by COUNTY has been identified in the specifications by a brand name and has not been notated as a "No Substitute" item, such identification is intended to be descriptive and not restrictive and is to indicate the quality and characteristics of product or service that will be acceptable. If CONTRACTOR offers an alternate product or service for consideration, such product must be clearly identified by CONTRACTOR to COUNTY. COUNTY will decide whether the alternate meets the salient characteristics of the specifications. An alternate product will not be considered for any item notated "No Substitute."

C. Unless CONTRACTOR clearly indicates in its response that it is proposing an alternate product, the response will be considered as offering the same brand name referenced in the specifications. If CONTRACTOR proposes to furnish an alternate product or service, the brand name of the product or service to be furnished will be clearly identified. A formal submittal for the alternate/shop drawings will be submitted. The evaluation of the alternate and the determination on acceptability of the alternate product or service will be the responsibility of COUNTY and will be based upon information furnished by CONTRACTOR. COUNTY will not be responsible for locating or securing any information which is not included in CONTRACTOR'S response. To ensure that sufficient information is available, CONTRACTOR will furnish as part of the bid or proposal all descriptive material by providing the manufacturer specification sheets so COUNTY can make an informed determination whether the product offered meets the salient characteristics required by the specifications. Failure to do so will require the use of the specified products.

FEES

The following is a list of fees that may be assessed to CONTRACTOR during the term of this Agreement. These fees are assessed to help offset the additional costs associated with COUNTY'S labor and vehicle usage required for unnecessary inspections or missed appointments. The \$80.00 fee shown below is a re-inspection fee for uncorrected workmanship. The fee will be applied to the third inspection and for any subsequent inspections. Any re-inspection fee charged to COUNTY by other agencies having jurisdiction, will additionally be charged back to CONTRACTOR. The fees, if any, will be deducted from the final invoices.

Missin	g scheduled appointments	\$70.00 each occurrence	
	<u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>	ϕ / 0.00 outil 00001101100	

Failure to respond to emergency calls	\$250.00 per day
Late to emergency calls	\$36.00 per hour
Inspected unacceptable workmanship	\$80.00 each inspection
Failure to provide any and all required documentation or reports	\$75.00 per day
Failure to pass all inspecting authority	\$250.00 per day
re-inspections (within 30 days of initial inspection)	

RETURN OF MATERIALS

Upon the request of COUNTY, but in any event upon termination of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR will surrender to COUNTY all memoranda, notes, records, drawings, manuals, computer software, and other documents or materials pertaining to the work hereunder, that were furnished to CONTRACTOR by COUNTY pursuant to this Agreement.

RETAINING OTHER CONTRACTORS

Nothing herein will be deemed to preclude COUNTY from retaining the services of other persons or entities undertaking the same or similar services as those undertaken by CONTRACTOR or from independently developing or acquiring materials or programs that are similar to, or competitive with, the work provided under this Agreement. While COUNTY has listed all major items which are utilized by COUNTY'S offices and departments in conjunction with their operations, there may be similar or ancillary items that must be purchased by COUNTY during the term of this Agreement. Under these circumstances, a COUNTY representative will contact CONTRACTOR to obtain a price quote for the similar or ancillary items. COUNTY reserves the right to award these ancillary items to CONTRACTOR, another vendor, or to acquire the items through a separate solicitation.

ACCURACY

During this Agreement, CONTRACTOR is responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of all work furnished hereunder. CONTRACTOR will, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors, omissions, or other deficiencies in resulting from work provided herein.

BUSINESS HOURS OF OPERATION

Unless otherwise specified in the technical specifications, all work performed will be accomplished between the hours of 8:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M., Monday through Friday, and no work will be performed on Saturdays, Sundays, or COUNTY Holidays, unless permission to work has been requested in writing by CONTRACTOR and approval, in writing, has been granted by COUNTY. Request for permission to work must be received by COUNTY no less than two days prior to the requested workday. The exception to this pre-approval requirement would be in the case of an emergency in which the emergency specification as outlined in General Terms and Conditions would apply. COUNTY Holidays are as follows: New Year's Day; Martin Luther King, Jr. Day; Presidents' Day; Memorial Day; Independence Day; Labor Day; Veteran's Day; Thanksgiving Day; Day after Thanksgiving; and Christmas Day. Special schedules may be established, if necessary, because of problems with noise or similar difficulties affecting other COUNTY facilities, COUNTY operations, or citizens in homes or buildings/rooms adjacent to the work being completed. When CONTRACTOR requests and is approved for Saturday, Sunday or Holiday work, COUNTY may assess CONTRACTOR the sum of \$250.00 per person per day for

each Saturday, Sunday or recognized Holiday worked or planned to work. These fees will be deducted from the final invoice.

PROTECTION OF PROPERTY

A. All existing structures, utilities, services, roads, trees, shrubbery, and property in which COUNTY has an interest will be protected against damage or interrupted services at all times by CONTRACTOR during the term of this Agreement, and CONTRACTOR will be held responsible for repairing or replacing damaged property to the satisfaction of COUNTY which is damaged by reason of CONTRACTOR'S operation on the property. In the event CONTRACTOR fails to comply with these requirements, COUNTY reserves the right to secure the required services and charge the costs of such services back to CONTRACTOR. All items damaged because of CONTRACTOR or subcontractor operations belonging to third parties, such as but not limited to: sidewalks, irrigation, curbs, pipes, drains, water mains, pavement, mailboxes, turf, signs, or other property will either be repaired or replaced by CONTRACTOR, at CONTRACTOR'S expense, in a manner prescribed by, and at the sole satisfaction of COUNTY.

B. If work is to be completed within COUNTY facilities, CONTRACTOR will be responsible for repairing or replacing any portion of any COUNTY facility, whether interior or exterior, damaged by reason of CONTRACTOR'S operation within the property. In the event CONTRACTOR fails to comply with these requirements, COUNTY reserves the right to secure the required services and charge the costs of such services back to CONTRACTOR. All items within a facility belonging to third parties, or to commissioners, officers, employees, lessees, invitees, or agents of COUNTY, including but not limited to personal items and furniture will either be repaired or replaced by CONTRACTOR, at CONTRACTOR'S expense, in a manner prescribed by, and at the sole satisfaction of COUNTY.

C. CONTRACTOR will be responsible for re-grading and re-sodding any areas that are disturbed by CONTRACTOR while the work is completed.

RISK OF LOSS/ACCIDENT NOTIFICATION

CONTRACTOR assumes the risk of loss of damage to COUNTY's property during possession of such property by CONTRACTOR, and until delivery to and acceptance of that property to COUNTY. CONTRACTOR will immediately repair, replace, or make good on the loss or damage without cost to COUNTY, whether the loss or damage results from acts or omissions, negligent or otherwise, of CONTRACTOR or a third party. If while completing work as part of this Agreement there is an accident that involves the public, CONTRACTOR will as soon as possible inform COUNTY of the incident by telephone. CONTRACTOR will follow up in writing within two business days of the incident. If Law Enforcement was involved and has written a report, CONTRACTOR will forward a copy of the report to COUNTY.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally blank.]